10 May 2004

MEMCRANDUM FOR RECORD:

SUBJECT: Procedure 15 Interview of — {

May 2004, MG George R. Fay and —imerviewed Ms
HDue to the time constraint, the statement was written after the
interview was compieted and based on answers ave_to questions
asked of her. The statement below is currently being reviewed by* in
Iraq. She was on leave and had not had a chance to review it. Once she signs

it, it will be 'sent to our office for record.

| arrived at Abu Ghraib in mid December. | was assigned as a screener, but for
four weeks, | worked in the Hard Site with interrogators. When | first amived, we
were told we needed to report any abuse and that id we did not report it, we were
just as guilty. The CHIEF tock us around the area and gave us a tour of the
facilities. In reference to any detainee abuse, | know the following. 1 heard that a

soldier took a female detainee and took her shirt off. The linguist did not reportit

and they both got charged. | never witnessed the use of dogs during
interrogations nor did | witness any detainee abuse. | did not witness any
detainees wearing women underwear. One day during a screening, one of the
detainees was stripped of all his clothes. The detainee was in one of the rooms.
For about 15 minutes, no one touched him. There was a MP female who worked
during the in-processing of detainees. The female would hit the detainee on his

legs to make him open his legs. She would first hit his left leg and then his right '

until he fell down. He was then pulied up and pushed to the wall. The MPs were
rough end having a female searching maie is not right because that is against
their religion. There were many detainees who came in abuse. While we were

screening the detainees, they would ask us, "Are they poing to beat us here

too?" In the medical facility, they would start talking. Some would have broken
shoulders, others came in on crutches. They do not know who beat them. They
said they were beat at ASAMIYA PALACE The detainees said that even the
finguist beat them. They didn't know if Americans were involved. They were
abused with cigarette burns, and electric shocks. The doctor documented the

bruises. | would say there were about 90 incidents that took place jn ASAMIY,
PALACE. Some detainees would say they were beat up by lragis. #
ame was mentioned a lot by detainees. He was accused ot bribing
eople for money and taking revenge on them. One detainee stated that
'hwould stick bottles up their rectum. The detainee couldn't sit down.
Thus occurred at ASAMIYA PALACE. There was also a detainee who was
handicap and was beat up very bad. ﬁf«as a BA'ATH Party member
who would gather people up. He would arrest & people and turn them over to

coalition forces. The Iragis said that he was killed by the lragis and his body was
hung. They say they have no more fear of him. A detainee said he was tortured
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for 7 days at night at the palace. They submitted two sworn statements. | heard
this January or February time frame. There was a group that had been taken {c
the palace. They were two sisters, two brothers, and two uncles. One of the
ladies does not want to talk about what happened to her. There was a detainee
who said that he was given cold showers and was under sleep management in
the isolation area. The MPs were there and they took orders to do . The
doctors didn't do anything. | checked into this and was told that cold showers
were nol abusive. The new unit that has taken over is much better and more
organized. | spoke to every single woman and they said they spoke very highly
of the soldiers. They would be taken out to get some sun. They were treated
like brothers. Even detainees who are leaving say there were not abused here.

——

J, MI
investigating Officer
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) SWORN STATEMENT -
_' For use of this form, ses AR 180-45; the propenent sgancy is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Secuion 301; Tille b USC Secuon 2051; E.O. 8397 dated November 22, 1943 (55M).
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE:  Tc provide commanders and iaw snforcement cthicials with means by which information may bc eccurately
T ROUTINE USES: Your social secufity number 1a used as an addilional/aiternate meahs o! identilication 1o taciliteve {ihing and retrieval
MSCLOSURE: Disclosure of your sotial securty numbar s voluniary.
1. LOCATION 2. DATE (rYYYMMDG) |3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER

Abu Ghraib Detention Facility

AME, FIR AME, MIDOLE NAME 6. S8N 7. GRADE/STATUS
_ CIv
B ORGANI ADDRESS

CACI, 504th Miliary Inteltigence Brigade, Abu Ghraib

9. =
| __’ . WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:
~/

1 arrived at Abu Ghraib io mid December. | was assigned as 3 screener, but for four weeks, I worked in the Hard site with
interrogators. When I first arrived, we were told we needed {0 repot( any abuse and that id we did not report it, we were just 85
guilty. The CHIEF 100k us around the area and gave us a lour of the facilities. in reference to any detainee abuse, I know the
following. | heard that a soldier wok a female detainee and took her shirt off. The linguist did not report it and they bath got
charged. ] never wimnessed the use of dogs during interrogations nor did I witmess any detainee abuse. I did not witaess any
detainees wearing women underwear. One day during a screening, one of the detainces was stripped of all his ciothes. The
detainee was in onc of the rooms. For about IS minutes, no one touched hir. There was a MP female who worked during the
in-processing of detsinees. The femule would hit the delzinet oo his legs to make him open his legs. She would first hit bus left legf
and then his right until be fell dows. He was then pulied up and pushed to the wall. The MPs werc rough and baving a female
searching male is not right because thal is against their religion. There werc many detainees who came in abuse. While we were
{screening the detainees, they would ask us, "Are they going lo beat us here too?* In the medical facility, they would start talking.
Seme would have broken shoulders. others camt in on crutches. They do not know who beat them. They said they were beat at
ASAMIYA PALACE. The detainecs said that even the linguist beat them. They didn’t kmow if Americans were involved. They
were abused with cigafettc burns, and electric shocks. The doctor documented the bruises. 1 would say
o L ook place in ASAMIYA PALACE. Some detainees would say they were beat up by Iraqgis.

narac w d ajot by detainecs. He was accused of bribing people for moncy and m. One

ted that ould stick bottles up their rectum. The detainec couldn't s§ i cd at
ASAMIYA PALACE $0 a detainee who was handicap and was beat up very bad. as a BA'ATH
Party mcmber who would gather people up. He would arrest e people and tumn them over 1o ¢ = he lraqgis said

that he was killed by the Iragis and his body was hung. They say they have no more fear of him. A detaince said he was orured
for 7 days at night at the palace. They submirted rwo sworn stalcmenis. I heard this Januery or February time frame. Therc was &
group that had been taken to the palacc. they were lwo sisters, two brothers, and two uncles. One of the ladies does not want o
talk about what happened to her.  There was a detainee who saic that he was given cold showers and was under slecp management
10 the isolation area. The MPs were there and they took orders to do it. The doctors didn't do unything. [ checked into this and
was told that cold showers was ot abusive. The new umt that has taken over is much better and more orgamzed. | spoke w0 every
singhe woman and they said they spoke very highly of the soldiers. ‘{hey would be laken out to get some sun. They were treated
like brothers. cven detainees who are leaving say there were not abused here.

Q. Do you have anything eise to add 1o this statement?

A. No

HUNI T T 1 End of Svatement/H TN EEUEET R LN T LT

10. EXHIBIT 11, INFTIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
- PAGE1OF __2  PAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT TAKEN AT ____ DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGF NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED.

DA FORM 2823, DEC 19898 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72, IS DBSOLETE USAPA ¥1.00
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STATEMENT OF ' TAXEN AT _Abu Ghraib - DATED

8. STATEMENT ([Continved]

AFFIDAVIT

. i ; . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1. AND ENDS ON PAGE__ 2 | FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF YHE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
8Y ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. { HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF FACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WiTHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHQUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFUL INDUCEMENT.

{Signature of Peraon Making Statement/

WITNESSES. Subscribed snd swoin to befors me, m person authonzed by isw 10
aummsier paihs, this _ day ol '
a1 Abu Ghraib Detention Facility

DAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS ’ {Signarure of Person Adminisierng Oath)

I‘TTfpod Name of Fersan Adrmimsienng Qath)

‘ UCMJ, ARtICLE 136
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS fAuthority Ta Adninister Qaths)

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
: PAGE 2. OF 2 PAGES

PAGE 3. DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 . : UBAPA V1 .00
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) SWORN STATEMENT
Far usa-of thia form, 1e2 AR 190-45; the proponmtt Mancy i QDCSOPS
PRIVACY ACT STATEMEMT
AUTHORITY. Titie 1045E Section 301: T § USC Saction 2051 £.0. 9397 dutect November 22, 1047 (SSN/.
PRIMCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commanders ané isw anforcemenl of (ISt with meam by which inlmation mpy St ACCUFHLEl [Sentified.
ROUTIKE LISES: Your 3858 3ECUNTY MITbAT & usad 53 an additioral/stiemate meany of identilication 1o fackiista fing 200 ratneval
DISCLOSURE: Discigssre of vaur sosial yecumy number is valiatery.
Y. LOCATION 1 DATE (TrrYMMOD) 3 THE ‘us NUMBER
Abu Ghraib, lraq, APO AE 09335 200470427 1735

T NAME, NAME ) 16, S5N 7. GRADE/STATUS
B _— s

2. ORGANIZATION DR AUDRESS ]
66th MILITARY INTELLIGENCE GROUP, Deployed to Abu Ghraib Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, Iraq, APO AE 09335

§. -
_[ WANT T0 MAXE THE FOLLDWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

1 arived at Abu Ghraib on 22 October 2003 10 conduct inierrogation operations. When I first arrived to Abu Ghrait, { received
a few classes from the 519th personnel on the jobs and roies of MI and MP personnel. There was an individual .from GTMO
who gave us some insight on imersogations, We then took a tour of the facilives. We did receive the Interrogation Rules of
Engagement (IROE) and a hand out on the IROEs which | signed. Ido not remember receiving any information on the Geneva
Convention. There was nio doubt as 1o what was allowed and not allowed during interrogations. There was 2 huge poster with they

IROEs as you walked in to the gl gations Debriefing Center (JIDC). 1 began 3 j erati weeks
on site. When T first arrived as in charge of all JIDC Operations. Aﬂemeﬁ. ecame
the JIDC OIC. When COL . he ok over everything. 1 never witnes: y d ¥l

hezrd about the abuse only afier the photos were found. | never saw the photos. There was a time when | witoessed the use of
dug but 1do not know who used them or for what. The event happened st WOODSIDE. I was going to the site. When ]
arrived, | went left and whe MP was coming from the right. I believe that happened in December. | reported it. There was
another Lime in November when an MP used loud music which I belisve was used 1o contro! his sleep schedule for an
interrogator. The music was prety loud. 1do not know who was the MP or which detainee it was used on. When | first

ammived, rules were more relaxed. lnie : izciplined in complering an Imerrogation Plan prior o enlering
the booth. | can't provide any specifics. ould prohably provide more information on detainee abuses.
Q. Do you have anything o add 10 this statenent?

A, No
AT LN L1 HEsd of Slau:mcuu'INH!HHHHHIIIHIIHIHIHHIlHIHIIHHI!HHIIIHHWH/HH{H}!’

w.

10 EXHIBIT 11. INITIALS OF PERSQILUAKING STATEMENT .
FAGE | OF __v'z-____ PALES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT OF TAREN AT bATiD

THE BOTTOM DF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGF MUST BEAR THE INITULS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND-FAGE NUMBER MUST BE BE INGICATED.

DA FORM 2827, DEC 1398 . DA FORM 2823, JUL 72 1S DBSOLETE PEAPA VI
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9. STATEMENT (Continued]

STATEMENT OF m_ Taken AT B Giami!  parep 3704 -
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WHICH BEGINS CN PAdE 1
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE.
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT.

. AND ENDS ON

1 HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR HEWARD WITHOUY
THREAT OF PUNI“»HN‘ENT AND WITHOUT COERCION. UNLAWFUL INFLUEN

WITNESSES: Subsrribad and eworn 10 bafors me, 2 .p.::on‘u‘urrmnud by law 1o
edminister oaths. this_57 7 dayof ii;)i%! 2oty
v T N
at b{)\ éh_"'(}.-‘ C».iinri.hg'n‘. h-.:f.{_.

FIDAVIT

. HAVE READ UR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
FLELLY UNDEHSI AND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
| HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INTTIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

Fre; inil

ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS

sme of Person Aamm.rsunné

Ly 0
HeMs . Arkcle

b

ORAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

{Aurhonty To Admuprster Daths)

INITVALS OF PERSON MAKING S

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1888

PAGE orF AGES

USAPA V.00
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MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD _ 'A;la Maw 0%

SUBJECT: Interview of_

Purpose of the interview was to clarify possibly conflicting statements conce:

Thi
detainees being stripped naked and held in cells in the 1A area. Statements bﬁ
flected that detainees in 1A were ofien placed there for
extended periods of time; § tended 1o

contradict this. qm: i n the one who designatéd.
which detiinces would be stripped an .

——

1015-1 025. 28 May I conducted a telephonic interview o A Co,
519" MI Bn, Fort Bragg, NC. A call was placed to his cell phone, from

my extension at Mewro Park

I introduced myself and indicated the charter of the Task Force under the Jeadership of
MG Fay and that it had been dirscied by LTG Sanchez. I did not provide the uctual
purpose of the interview, but explained that | was attemptiag 10 gain edditional
information concerning possible abusc or humiliation of detainees at Abu Ghrib.

ived at AG circa 25 July 03 and departed just before Christmas 03. He was

assigned at NCOIC of the screening section and as such conducted the initial screening of
incoming detainees, to ascertain potential intelligence value and/or determination that
segregation might be required for security reasons. His section would select to which
Camp or arca they would be confined (V jgilant, Ganei, 1 A, etc). Screening would then
have MP escorts move the detainees to the dctermined location. H;I-ﬂd most
often accompany the transfer, carrying paperwork. A handoff was made to MPs at the
recerving end an would then carry paperwork to ICE/Operations. The paperwork
would have a rationale as to why certain dctainees were placed in 1A as opposed to other
locations (priority intelligence value, possible threat to handlers, hard to control, etc).
Operations would review and could overcall original site determination if
necessary. There was no SOP or established s when rst started working

- there. He developed procedures 902 ba them up the iné€ YO operations where they
were reviewed and aceepted by From an interrogation persnective, there
were no set rules about clothing or nudity until the formal IROEs were established. From
a MP perspective, detainees were to be issued jumpsuits when avajlable, otherwise they .
work the civilian clothing they had when they were brought in. w“)mmcnted that
sometimes the MPs ‘would strip search a detainee as part of a secunty inspection or
response 10 a tip that the detainee might have contraband or a wespon and could pose a
threat. This was a MP, not 2 MI decision. _.hat this made sense from a security
standpoint {less likely to be a threat, less likely 10 attempt escape if not clothed, etc.);
however, stripping and/or keeping a detainee without clothing did not make sense from 2

professional interrogation perspective (wauld be contra to establishing trust and
- confidence in gening the detaince to couperate).

AGO000244
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aid he would be in 1A on a random, irregular basis and did not see or hear of any
detainees being stripped and kept without clothing for periods of time. He said it might
. have been an interrogation tactic that could have been attempted, but would have required
advance approval. He was not aware of any requests, but was not fully knowledgeable of
all that went on in interrogation operations. .He added that stripping a detainee as a
control measure might have been a tactic used by the MPs as a control measure or
punishment, but he was not aware of any particular instance.

He commented that there was general gossip floating through AG that some detainees
had been issued pink underwear because that was all that was available in the supply
system, and that some detainees wore pink underwear under their jumpsuits. He could
not name any specific individual who might have told him that, nor did he ever see any
detainees with pink underwear.

id not see or hear of any abuse or humiliation of detainees, nor did he see or hear
of any unauthorized photos or videos of detainees.

GG 15
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SWDRN STATEMENT
For wae af s (rem, 302 AR 100-45: e propavenl ppuuly i3 DOCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Tuie 30 LEC Sechon 301- Tiie 5 USC Sacien 2351 £.0. 9397 saiud Nevembe 721843 55N,
PRRCIPAL PURPDSE: Ta provida corarandass sod liw { 1 61 Iicuals waIn e by wiech nlmmhmumiﬁuhm
ROUTINE USES: © Your yucisl recunity b © wad 2 88 b oasl SrmaLy mea of avmiificaion 10 (ciow fiking and rermaval.

pISCLOSURE: Destanaure o) your sacel secwely bt PRONINY

¥, LOCATION 2 DAL (TFYTMMOD) 3 nuzmu NUNBE
BIDG AT-5636 Gocham St. Fort Bragg, NC 28310 2004 /06104 15

NA M AME 6. 55N 7. GCRADESTATUS
‘1’5, DRAGANIZATION

on ] .
A Company, $19th Miliary latelligence Battalion, $35th Miluary Inelligence Brigade
%

L _WANT 10 MAKE THE FOLLTWING STATEMENT UWDER DATH:

Trom the tod of Jul 03 1 eafly Ot 03 1 was deployed tw Abu Ghraib {AG), Irag with A Company, 519th M1 Bn.. Lan 1 978

Counterimelligeace Agent who perfonined inleyogaliais. My, téam's initial Mission upoi my arrival 10 AG was to setup Lhe war

a) life suppon arcas to be ol intefrogatun operations for dctainees gathered during aperalion V!CI‘OI_IY BOUNTY]
Prior w initial operations, wilh inlerregator mpul. an nizrrogaion Rules of Engapement (IRDE), which establishe:
owr authorized limits conce!! L uon Lechmigues. Shonly after my amival o AG, | was bricfed on the IROE and signed

memerandum staung | understood and would ollow the JROE. Tue IROE in lrig wus similar to e onc used by the 319th 10
Alghamstan. A difterence in the 1wo documents was [he IROE for lray was mure detailed. This was done 1 precude questians
concermng limdatiens. 0 By opipion, the IROE was clear and atcyuately establishied our lett and right houndaries concerning
interrogation techniques. Certain lechniques coptained in the IROE bad 1w be justificd and appmved. The vehicle for requestny

these techniques was the interrogation plan, which had 1 ‘e done for every inl ingied Sleep Scheduie
bad to be requested threugh the iplerrogation team chict 1o the operalions cel The request
ncluded 2 detailed prapascd schedule and justincation. Once approved the o zation through

e tenm lcader back down 1o the inlerrogator.  Someont 10 the cperations cell would then take e schedule o the MP's who wer
supposed 10 eRsure the schedule was lollowed. ] do not knuw ihe methods the MP's used to ensurc e detainees were awake al
the proper time. The 72nd MP's kept a three ring bifder 10 ceil block ) fadds ere unknowil. On scveral pocasions the
wistruchions we gave the MP's concerning detaitwes were nul executed. 16 me of one such eccasion which 2
N\ interrapnior moved o detanee outside without shade lut ad SPPTOXLIMALL [ i Lo uuknown teason, The
interrugntor told the MP puardmg, the detaince to look afler his welfare during {hat time. sperulated the guard
changed I d and the tHstruclions were i yelaved (o the releil, nor execuied. Lovered the incident and
scotued tar atlowing e incidznt lo oceur One 1o twe moaths nlo our operation of incrrugating these delai
our taild T4 o Toceive other delamees from vanous detention facilities in Iraq atier it was Jecided to make AG the
centralized lucal noture of the detamee ranslbers, many detanees arrived withoul
docunemauou. s ih M] Bn and detainees those porsnnut] were
| AHEITOEANGY ArT] o SEPLCmbEr. : Lvere under inense pressuze from LTG SANCHFL
provide imelligeace reporting and sul o & melhods and processcs, to include Lhe aciual question
i interropation plons. On ocLasiany conducled interrogations themselves. One
serzogalion occurred at the request U ight. 1t secmed COL PAPPAS was not expericuced i

T Lot
1nILTIUEALON OPCYALOAS and was InoIC concerned with reporting than propes interrogation techniques. On approsimately 29 Scp
(3. 1 pyesheard someanc oaking 2 statcicat about » detance dvi

ng while bting interrogated by an Other Guverninent Agoncy
{OGA) official. The OGA then packed the detainee in i and plaved by i

n 2 local tani. The axi driver was py
pody wwiy. 1 was not sure if | had beard ¢ -onfitmed the statement was rmade by
ain nut suze il 1 was A joke or a fruc SloFy.

1o house their detainees at
celle” m bluck LA and aliowing them to inte mecs Al theit discretion. | heard rumors
GIRATS Ligu o O ifts fo; ihese acuvites occur. During the course vl imer m | oke
| Representauves of the Internatior nami ot R n

to be done and was told 1he ICASORY

g ol U HEnL | Gid not walaess any J0uSE 7 niall TNt while st AG. 1 novér direcied the MP's 1o
abuse ot maltreat the detasees, nor did 1 ever biear of it. The MP's never offered w abuse the dewinces for me, nut did | ever
hear of them offcring to 0o 0 for other M1 personnel. Afer the Joint inerrogauan and Debriefing Cruter was established, COL
PAPPAS kept the 519th M Bn 97E's anx removed the 519th i'l Bn. U7B's trom the ierrogation facility and put them on

Tactical HUMINT Teams. 1 departed AG in early Oct 0 IUHHfI!HHIHHHIHIHHHIHHIHHHl’fflIHIIHHHUHIHHHIHHH
HII!.’IHH.'IHH!IH.fHHIIIHIHH!HHHHIHHHIHUHﬂHUIHH IH‘H!HHUIfHa’HHHHIH.’IHHHHHIHHHHI

s
10 PRI \ 1) IMTIALS STATEMENT
' PAGE | OF PAGES
7777

ALCITION AL PAGES MUST CORTMIN THE KEADING *STATTMINT OF AT

THE BOTTOM DF EACK ADDITIONA! PAGE WUST BEAR THE WITLALS OF FiE FERSON MAXING THE STATEMERT. AN PAGE NUMBLN MUST BE BE WOICATTO.

DA FORM 2823, DEC 1398 DA FORM 2823, A 72,15 OBSOLETE Y
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STATEMENT Of l-——— TAKEN AT E o patep _2004/06/08

5. STATEMENT /Cominued!
: DO YQU H‘;\VE ANYTHING TO ADD TO THIS STATEMENT?

A NOIIHI!IIIHI'HIUHIIHIIIIIHHHNIHHIHI!HHIHIIHIHHIHIHIIIfIIIHIHIIIHI!HHHHIHIHHIHIHHHHIHIHHUN!HIIHHHHI.’IIH.’Ii

HIIIHHIHHIIIHIHHHHHIIHIIIIHHHIHHHIHHHHEND OF STATEMBNTIIIIIIIIII!HH!HHIHIIHHHIHIIIIHIIIIHIIHHIIIHIIHIHHII !

AFFIOAVIE S i aEL
HLYE D AG-DR HAVE HAD READ T0 ME THIS

= STATEMENT
GINS DN PAGE 1, AND ENOS ON PAGE | FYLLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MAADE
GY ME THE STATEMINT IS TRUE I HAVE INITIALED ALL €0 D HAVE SNITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. 1 HAYE MACE =
SUA1EMENT FREELY WITHOUT #OPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHDUT THREAT OF PUMISIIMENT, AND WITHOUT COERTION. UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE. DR UNLAWFLL muctm@w‘
-

] [Signatars of Person Meking Stateweny)

VIsTHESSFS: Subtcrbed Bnd wom 10 bebnre me, B pesson authanted by lew [o

sérnnisier oalhs, tha 4th  awr

of June . 2004

»1 Fort Bragy, North Carolina

DRGANIZATIDN GR ADDRESS -dgmiaittanng Daih!
- 5 U.5.C 303
DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS - e e {Avinanty Te Admasster Daths!

INITIALS BF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

7

nnz! uq;s .

PACE 3, DATORM 2822, DEL 1338

Ve
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SWORN STATEMENT

For use of this torm, see AR 180-45; the proponent 4 O OPS
LOCATION DATE Har'ﬁe_ﬁ FILE RUMBER
CITF-7 HQ, IRAQ BT kA
, MIDDLE NAME SOCIAL SE GRADESTATUS
——— B

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
A Co. 202 Ml Ba, Baghdad Central Correctional Facility, Lrag

I

. WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

amved at Baghdad Cantral Correctional Facility an the 21at of October 2003, The document flow on detainees worked as
follows. The imerrogstors would print owx all docuuments r:fcn'h:gsto a demaines and would place the documents inside the
dctaince dossicr. The detainee dossicr would then be given 1o OPS, Collection Management & Dissemination (CM&D).
CM&D would check for outstanding requirctnents and then send the file 1o the Detinee Assessment Board (DAB). The D,
would review the file for missing documents, conduct a bricfing with the detainee, and make an assessment whether or not the
detzinee could b sent to the review board. At any time the file could be returned 1o the Interrogation Costrol Element (ICE) if
the dewipees was deemed t0 have further knowledge. ! the DAB approved the detainec doasier, it was then given to te
Magisuate Cell. The Magiswrate Cell would review and pass the detainee dossier 1o the Relcase Board. The Reicasc Board
would then approve or deny the release. | believe that a denied detainee dossier would be given back to the Magiswaze. Itis

possible that the Interrogauon Plaps were rling documents, but same may still gid . The
database we were using was nicknumed the; it was compiled and maintained by 97E
from 205th M] BN. Some detainee dossiers s interfogations where placed oa the

Interrogation Notes and Information Intelligence Reports. The database was supposed to be backed-up daily. "There was a list
of required documcnls 1o be included in the detainee dossiers.  Af different times at the prison i i

the DAB packet. Eve; tion Plan was to be signed and approved
or me. | imow w ved any mnterrogation
e source Uy stripping them, and fieither wolld 1. took comtrol of a speci i

1aling

EIN, Saddam. 1 was not allowed {0 review any of the plans for that section.
and a2 Warrant Officer arrived to Baghdad Central Correctional Facility from Guantanamo B4y,
working for them at GITMO. Before an intetrogation the detainec could be stripped and scarched for weapans, this
was 10 be done by the miliary gglic:. If they refused the inierrogator had xhchﬂ:uon of domg it. Military Police had contro) of

the hardsite duning my tme al Baghdad Central Correcuomal Facility, They the key vsin,
remember the International Comminiee Red Cross visitiog but I was pot briefed on them 1 went down
to the hard site about once a month to show new interrogators the facility. | never saw a r approved the
use of dogs in interrogations. [ told they rs that mili ice were not to be used as of e ikerrogation
approach. | do not femember wlking \Wonccmng interrogation abiltics snd report writing skills.
Ao Th N e ﬁg’

A
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STATEMENT (Continued!

/

AFFIDAVIT

- . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE™Y AND ENDS ON PAG . T FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT 1S TRUE. | HAVE INTIALED ALL'CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF EENEFIT OR REWA
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLU

gnature

Subscribed and swaorn to bafora me, a psreon suthorizsd by law 1o

WITNESSES:
ademiniater onths, thie _15th  dey of June e 04
at CJTF-7 HQ, IRAQ
ORAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Sipreture of Person Admirlering Quth
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SWORN STATEMENT
Fou ua of 1his form. 508 AR 100-45; tha proposen) spancy s DDCSOPS

PRIVALY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Titl 10 USC Sacrion X01; Tuke 5 USC Section 2851 £.0. 5397 Anat November 27, 1943 /55N
PRINCIPAL PURPDSE: To uovits eossnandars wne w anforcement of fickaly with mas by wiich iemation ey e scourstely setifed.
ROUTINE USES: Your s0cial Beriaity numibe B ssad as an séditDeal/anerate masns of idewtification te tacilitate fling sed retneval
DISCLOSURE: Disciose &1 your 5008 SECUNTY Rember i8 volwaery.
1. 10CATION 2. DATE /rryvamids) 3 T 4. FILE NUMBER
Atu Ghraib, Irag, APO AE 09335 2003/04/127 131

IDOLE MAME : 5, SSN 1. GRADE/STATUS
1. ORGAMIZATION OR ADDRESS

66th MILITARY . INTELLIGENCE GROUP, Deployed to Abu Ghraib Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, Irag. APO AE (9335

Y :
—
i ‘ . WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UMOER DATH:

I arrived at Abu Ghraib on 21 Cctober 2003 w conduct interTogation operations. When 1 ﬁm arrived 1o Abu Ghraib, 1 received

» tour of the facilities, scrocaimg siies, Hard Site, and Camp Vigilam 1 also received gabiniafing oo Interrogation Rules of
E.ngagunemmdahandoutonthc[ROEswhmhlsxgnad Thcbncﬁngpmenwdby uclurmontheIROE 1
do not remember receiving 2ny information on the Geneva Conventigeaghen b arrived given on x regular basis.
At the time 1 arrived, COL PAPPAS was in charge but not on-site. |3 ran operations. The MPs -

were initially in charge of the facility until LTG Sanchez placed COL'PAT ICONETANEET” 1 really didn't see any changes

afier COL PAPPAS was placed in charge. 1never wlmeasedortncwoflnyd:umeeabm I first beard lbouluwthID

began their investigatios. 1 did not know of abuse duriag interrogations or any MI personnel telling the MPs to “sofien up” or
*give the MP the Treannent”. | found out after the fact that a dog was uwsed during an interrogation. I do not remember who wld

me. We had an incident where a prisoner was smuggled » pun by the-Iragi guards that run the prisos. The prisoner used the

to try 1o kill an MP, So allofthcfnq ;uardawmswppcduthegu:mdqn:smm That was when 1

ever saw any photos. Personne) who might know about detsinse sbuse or photos

and one of the contracied linguists, whose name I don't remember, who worked for

Q. Doyouhavemymmgwnddmlhusmmz”
No

A
ISR 1T End of Sur.cmcnUJHHIIIIIIIIIIIlIIIHlﬂlllﬂlllllﬂﬂﬂlllfI/IIlllllllll”ﬂllll”ﬂllﬂi,
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STATEMENT OF

8, STATEMENT (Continued)

pate 27 A PR 2 oo

TAKEN AT M

WITNESSES:

Al
L |H_ HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICHBEGINS ON PAGE 1. AND ENDS ON PAGE ULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORAECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOLIT HOPE OF BENERIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLU g LEIS

FFIDAVIT

ignature of Person

Subacribed snd swomm to batore me, & perzon suthorized by law N =
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PRVALY ACY STATEMERT

AUTHORITY: - T wuscm:l:rmsmmmi;mmmuu—u%m 3N,
In”mﬁdhmﬂfﬂm-—nﬂmmhmwm.

PRAICIPAL PURPDSE: , . 7
'munlz USES: Your social sscarity namit is used 53 0 MMELOASUSHETARE A o aentificotion (¥ (aciats King sed retrevel

: Distiadurs of your 3Gl Secuniy murmber 1 voluntary .
?51?::::: == ; 7 DATE [7YYIMMDD; 3. TIME i 4. FLE WUMBER
CRYSTAL CITY. VIRGINIA 2004/05/1 257

E. 55N 1. GRADEISTATUS
.. o so1

ORGANIZATION &R ADDRE
.BLICD. 470TH MILITARY INTELLIGENCE GROUP, CAMP BULLIS, TX 78234

B, . _
‘ WANT T0 NAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT URDER DATK:

Rules of Engageraents and 3 esval prics 1o 1
iechniques which required 0N | execunng 3

of aurqlrrival. we were gi La Lp o riomey ; gurprised me about the IROE ‘was that cestain approaches
required a cerain level of approval while others that 1 felt should bave required approval were acceptabie. _Whep ] asked sbout -
them, 1 was told that s whar had been Ippl.’uvﬂi and thal was s wi Y Une pf I s reguinng pnYr DRI

Pride s g ) [he 1eams ]| bad consisted ofld

ight i i Y personne

being cxperienced but i ven though they had been thes
were Dot experienced. 1 felt that bad a problem with autbority. |} ‘ IS¢ Navy but b
J} did not have any intzrrogation exp Abu Guraib. He had a problem W military. He did pot like the way the
milisary chain of command functoned. And he didn't view e chain of command as something he needed w follow. 1 worked
with all my tzams apd asked them to tell me what they ymew . 1 would do my best w0 train them during Sergeant's Time. We
would focus on  different type of approatbes, paperwork, and report writing. 1 would help them rewrite their
memorandums. really bad a bard time writing his reports and they aften had o be rewritlen. He would ask me 10 help
bim with some ap s and | gave him some carrespondence course manuals on spproaches. | felt I had syong analysts, but
they peeded 8 lot of supervision. [ conducted inwerrogauons as pezded or as time permitied. I usually nssisted with miesrogations
when the mterrogasor could pot break a detainee. My workload was oo omch and there were 100 mAnY issues to deal with. 1
didn't really get very much sleep. The average pumber of interTopatiops each team was required to condicl were Iwo per toam
per day. ALl of my soldiers struck me as very inteligent  The detaner abuses [ witness are as follows: Omne of my jobs was 1o
§o check on my soldiers and the detainees. When we moved 10 We night ghift, 1 would go to the cellblocks 1o speak to the MPa.
1 usually went with apother interrogator or by mysell. | went 1o jpilant during the day to mov j WE WETE QOiDg

1o interrogate dusing the night. I know that p gunfire, was schedaled 1o inmerrogptc t another detainee
Lad mentioned that ight have & gun. potifjed th of command. lnstead o going to interrogate,
the MPs approached find out if he b CapoDn. bad gone to visit himn at the hdspi find out where be had

gonen the pun. He found out that an 1P bad brought the gun ey weapons in to the detai time after the gunfight, I

heudﬂ)wu back. | went 1o check op him in the cell. | was surprised to see the MP who had thot, was on duty

guarding the secuon where be was. ] asked the MP if he thought this was a good idea. He wld me he didn't really wamnt 1o be
%t.l ‘

there but that he couid be professional about it was 10 the cell be had been in prior to the incident. 1 walked 1o his
cell 1o check up on him. It was very cold that mi fnul}dﬁeilhoul clothes, no blanket or mattress, His wounds were
still bieeding and he still bad the catheter in. He did not have the bag just the catheler. 1 yelied at the MP and asked for the
NCOIC. ] asked why was the detainee without any clothes and Bo blanket. He said they dido't bave any clotbes or blankel. |
wold him he better find some. 1 went over 1o the Medical site and told the specialist on duty to gel the doclor. It was after
2200brs and the specialist wld me that the doctor { a COLONEL) did not wamt to be bothered unless it was an smergency. | told
J um i was an emergency and to wake the Colonel. The Colonel asked me what 1 wanied. | asked him if he was aware that
btiﬂ had a catheier in, He said yes that the CSH bad made a mistake. | asked him "can‘t you ke it out®. He zaid oo

cause the CSH put it in 5o the CSH had 1o take it ou. | wid him ths was unaccecpuble. He asked me what did | went kim
do. ] wld him 1o take it out, He said be couldn't do 11 and thal the detainec was due to go back 1o the CSH the following day. ™
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fine t you do what you have to do, 1 &m going back to bed .
was with me during this incident. After ing to-the COLONEL,
notified my supervisor. 1don't remember if it was the night OIC or

when he came in for day shift [ to! the COLONEL might be a
a5 on leave at this time. 1 do pot knogw what

did after 1 told him. I believe thal as taken 10 the CSH the
following day. 1 do not know if the MFs recorded it. They kept a log, but it was not
detailed or accurate. I asked to see the log and they had not recorded the incident. I also
notice they had not recorded some other incidents which I knew had happened ba;ed on
what my soldiers told me. When | went to check on e detainee, I would go straight to
their cell and did not look at other detainees for several reasons, 1 did not want the
detainees o sce me because I might interrogate them &t some point and 1 did pot want
them 10 sce me in other circumstances thao in the interrogation booth. It was also too,
dark in the cells to see anything unless the detainee was right up against the cell door.
Sometimes a detainee would call out to me as I walked by. They asked us for things. 1
tried to minimize my contact with them. I never saw an MP kick, punch or push a
dewines. Therc were sometimes when 1 questioned their actions. Once, 1 noticed that a
detainee was wet and cold. His blankets were also wet. The detainee stated that the MPs
had washed their clothes and gave it back to them wet. I went to the MPs and told them
to get the detainee dry clothes. They said they did not bave any, I told him to get some. ]
can't remember the date; it must have been in December because it was fairly cold
outside. I believe this oce in the late nighttme of carly moming. [ believe the
linguist with me was or was one of my
favorite linguists. He was very good. In referenice to female panues, I remember secing
the detainces wearing them. Anyone who walked out to the cell should have seen them,
1 didn’t report it because I thought they were approved. This was considered an
acceptable approach and the MPs did it for disciplinary action. 1 personally never signed
off on an interrogation plan on this technique. If one of my Tiger Team members
purposely did this without my signature, I would have recommenided removal from
imerrogations. The MPs had some detainees handcuffed to the cell door. 1 asked them if
this was part of their SOP, they rephed with, *What SOP?” My first linc supervisor 1

would report it to was ‘We had daily meed e scction
- ; and myself attended. d/or
omeunmes atten section leaders shoulll have been aware of the

women's underwear. My section didn't use the dogs for interrogations, At GTMO we
used the dogs for security purpose dunng in processing. In Irag, the dogs were used
_ differently. They were used during a shake down and mside the first linc of concertina
“wire in the camp. The dogs if they had been used for interrogations, would be used as &
fear up and needed 2n approval from higher. _Afier the , my section came on duty
while the [P questioning was going on. ad ordered an IP round up and

they were al] guestioned. The 1eam we were replacing had been at it for over 12 hours. ]
spoke to thc“and asked if he wanted my leam to take over. He
said yes. ] cleared 1t wi e chain of command and my soldiers relieved the other

teams. 1 do not remember where QI was m this time.

- ere on duty and maybe [ as well.
was y relieved of her interrogation duties and I found her interrogating.
INTTLIAL OF PW&IMG STATEMENT PAGE z of 7 PA!!
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‘ notiﬁ_and she went to stop from interrogating. I think
she had somc arguments from others in the chain of command about P
- being allowed to have “contact” with detainces. At that moment, there werc no
interrogation plans. I took my teams and told them “do not do anything you would
normally not do. Watch yourself” 1 interrogated one IP who might have known who
brought the gun. After being unsuccessful, I handed him over to the MPs to process um
as a detainee. [ saw no dogs that evening. If an interrogator asked an MP to have a dog
bark near a detainee who was being interrogated or questioned and if that interrogator
told the detainec that if he did not answer the questions they were going to sick the dog
on him, that would have been a violation of the IROEs. If they did it without a prior
approval from higher, they were wrong and would be pulled from interrogations
immediately. 1 constantly made comments to my section about not deing anything
without my approval. Obviously, things occurred without my approval but as soon as ]
found out about misbehavior, 1 took action. Sometimes I was supported by the chain of
command and sometimes | wasn't. There was no doubt in my mind that my section
_understood my rules about approving approaches before they went in the booth and
following procedure for exceptions to IROE. There was a rumor about threc male
interrogators who had done an interrogation with a female. If a gathering was called for
this incident, I do not remember since we were always having formations for
here he appeared to be agitated. One.evening, around 0200 or 0300 homsl

there wefe some administrative issues 1 was busy dealing with from higher.
came to me and said he needed to speak to me. 1 told him to wait and he said he need
to speak to me now. I hung up the phonc and began to speak to him. He told me that
and her analyst“ad just screwed up. She had just walked a naked
detainee across the camp. Itold him 1o get them in now. When they came to me, I asked
what had happened. They both did the talking. nsaid she had questioned
the detainee and he would not answer and he had a bad attitude so she stripped him of his
clothes. I asked her if the detainee was naked when she walked him back into the
compound (Vigilant) and she said she gave lum a blanket. I told her that we had had nots
and this event could have caused a not if the detainees saw a female walking a naked
detainee. [ told her she did not have this in her interrogation plan I had signed and that
jeving her from interrogations pending me notifvi e chain of command.

Jwas nervous and very remorseful. concerned me with her
attitude. No matter how I explained it to her, she still didn’t feel that she had done
anything wrong. This event happened even afier [ had a session with everyone in my
section about what they could and could not do. 1 went to see the MPs and asked if the
detainee was clothed and if they had had apy problems. I asked them to log it and write
an incide noﬁﬁcdﬁlwhcn she came on duty around 0600 or 0700

hours. asked us to wrile sworn statements. I found out during the swomn

statement writing that there was a third soldier who was invelved but i d new
and was sitting in the interrogation for the first time. 1 think a
problem with me being her supervisor because we were specialists together at DLl and 1 .

had gotien promoted before she did. just seemed to be burned out. I had told
him before that if he had any questions to ask me and he did come to me on some
occasions to bounce things off of me. Later that day, wanted to talk to
rac and asked for my recommendations. I told him that should get a:-

INTTIAL OF PERSWING STATEMENT PAGE g of 7 PAGE
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’;\rﬁcle 15 and the max punishment; (M@ sboutd get an Article 15 with less

punishment. The third individual should be counseled and told what was wrong with the
. incident and probably trained. myself
and a couple others (whom I can’t emnber) discussed the incident. We went through
cverything that happened and how bad done a “strip interrogation”. 1 was
asked again for my recommendation and I gave the same recommendation. .
also gave the same basic recommendation. ook several days to make a
decision but no Article 15s were given. Ibelieve told me they received
a local letter of reprimand. The incident was apparently kept quiet. My soldiers would
ask me what happened, I told them that ] made my recommendations and could not
discuss them. I bclievcdHud a clear understanding of her boundarnes.
Any advice I gave her, she was real quick to pick it up. I was very shocked when I
found out what she had done. Afier the incident, shut down with me. She
was pulled from my section and reassigned. She wouldn’t speak to me anymore. | knew
she had 2 good understanding of the [ROE but I felt she could not distinguish the
difference between right and wrong. m:& on leave and things were still
* being run the same. When word got out that's ot returning, things went down hill
from then on. I spoke to and told him that everyone was doing whatever
he or she wanted and I requested to be relieved as the Section Leader. My section was
selected to be a special project section b This project was to interrogate
those who could not be broken. This project did not last long because we requested
permission to use techniques that required approval from higher but we never received
the approval or it took to long to get a response. I had requested to be taken away from
interrogations. After was captured, was selected to be in a special
project and departed for a while. I was told he no longer reported to me and belonged to
someone else. My opinion was that was not that expenienced, but my opinion
did not matter. His reports were very bad and he often had to rewrite them but he was
very people oriented and someone in the chain of command thought he was a good
interrogator. He had 30 detainees, but he only concentrated on five, and his four
associates. as very ignorant of a lot of the procedures. He was strong willed
and proud of the act that he could get along with almost everyone. Others in the chain of
_command considered him one of the best interrogators. I had requeste
mo have_takcn out of my section and was told that
golden chuld” and [ would be moved before they would mov
came and told me I was no longer the section leader. 1 asked him why was
relieved, “because I had requested it or for another reason?”’ He said he didn’t know. He
said the decision came from higher than him. I saw |} ¥ I told him that I
needed to kmow why. 1 told him that if ] had done something wrong, someone should
have eled me and given me a chance to correct what I was doing wrong but no onc
told me he was sorry and that I hadn’t done anything wrong. 1
asked him if ad made the decision, he said he didn't know. Everyone
knew that) a personal problem with me. Sorne of the decisions made

receiving direction straight from

s special project was supposed to
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ost qualified interrogators but I questioned some of the interrogators on the
as very aggressive and I refused to work with him. lmlcﬁﬂm I

though as a lose cannon and a jail sentence waiting to happen, I had been in the
booth wi efore and I felt that he and I clashed as interrogators. One day when
I went up to one of the camps, I began to speak to one of the MPs on duty. He told me he
didn’t know I was the NCOIC. He thought that as because he always gave his
name as a point of contact. liked to BS with the MPs. In reference to

shaving detainees bead, I know we bad a head lice problem and we had to shave off the
hair, IF the shaving was done for interrogation approach purposes, it was an exception to
IROE. Once, and | had a conversation about the use of dogs. He and another
SGT wanted to used them as part of a drawn out approach. I told him that there were
aspects of the approach that were crossing the line. He disa with me and wanted to
go higher up the chain of command. We took the issue to He didn’t listen
to me very often because he always had others from the chain of command that supported
him and told lurn he was doing a great job. Most of the requests we submitted were on
sleep deprivation and we did get some approved. The requests should be in the JIDC, but
I can believe them getting lost because we often lost complete files. Our filing system
was not the best. We did not have serviceable fie cabinets and teams were given
approval to place file in cardboard boxes. One day when I briefed LTG SANCHEZ and
MG FAST, I was asked what support we needed.. I gave her my list. File cabinets and
safes were on the list. MG FAST delivered about 40% of the list, but no file cabjpets.
Civilians were placed in position of authorty. One of the CACI employees, as
laced jp_charge of screening. was in charge of B Section.
as in charge of the Detainee Assessinent Board (DAB). Who did | was
in charge? When 1 first arrived, I knew was in charge of the Interrogation
Control Element (ICE). 1 knew COL PAPPAS was the Brigade Commander but h
never there. He later lived in the ICE area though. I knew that an
were there but honestly I do not know what their true roles were.
was more involved with housing issues and didn’t really get involved with
mterrogations so when he would call formatons and was giving us orders in relation to
interrogations, I questioned that. Once he held a formation to incorporate a new “salute”
policy. ] raised my hand and asked him how that would affect the interrogators who use
a different rank as approaches. He yelled at me and said he wouldn’t argue this with me.
I felt it was wrong for him to be involved in interrogation rules or procedures with no
mnterrogation background. I don’t thi is boundaries were clear to anyone, including
hm. I hlowhrcponcd to but 1 did not know what be did. |
found this out during one tings when was trying to give her
opinion, she was told by to be quiet and back down. As far as ghost
detainees I didn’t deal too much with them. We had a board in the ICE that showed all
the cells to include those that had “OGA™ on them. I was told the detainees in those cells

belonged to OGA and we shouldn’t be concerme em. ] was told that ] did not
have to allow OGA to see my detainees. When! was there and I denied their
request, the chain of command backed me up. Once left, my requests to

deny OG s 1o my detainees were denied by my chan of command.
: might have more information. She worked more with them.

A would take my detainees 1 would ask that one of owr interrogators sit in on th
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interrogation and a copy of the report be provided to me. 1did get both requests. The
only other thing about OGA is that I was told that one of their detainces died of 2 heart -
attack in our detention facility while being interrogated. The detainee was taken out on a
stretcher and treated as if he was sick so as not to upsct the other detainees. In De. er,
Itol at I didn't want to be involved in interrogations anymore

G—bro—
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. STATEMENT (Costiovt) : 1
*harﬂy afterwards | became the 1 dig this for eck and then 1 was placed back en interrogations on a special
team. While on this team, 1 1o and that there were several incidents that 1 felt wncomfortable
with and reguested to be taken out of an interrogator roie. I said would assist as an advisor but pot 1o go back into
interrogations. One incident occurred when | was running an interrogation on an iragi general who was being questioned in
relation to SADAM's capture. | reported to COL PAPPAS that [ was petting nowhere with the detainee. [ was later called intw
the ICE and told there would be someons assisting me. Tt was a JORDANIAN MAJOR. A warran! officer (I can't remember his

name) told me 1o brief the JORDANIAN on everything [ had on the geperal, 1 asked to 1o the warran! officer outside. |
told him that I could not do that ¢ of the information was SECRET/NOFORN. He told me to do what I was wold. 1
told kim not if it was unlawful. came out and wanted to know what had happened and 1 told him it was an

OPSEC viclation. He wld me just to give him the Jordanian the unclass version and take himp into the booth. While in the booth,
1 infroduced bim as my colleague. The translator introduced him wrong and stated that the JORDANIAN was my assistant. |
told the detainee that | was getting nowbere with him and that | was going to leave him with ‘my celleague (the Jordanian). The
detainee jumped up and told me he would tell me whatever | wanted to know. The following day, another inlcIrogator wen! in 1o
talk 10 the detainee withoul consulting me. This totally ruined the rapport | had established with the detainee. Another issue was
an OPSEC issue; | felt that we were putting too much information in the STPR databsse. 1 felt we developed tear lines for 2
reason, but they were not being used. Al the information on 2 detainee’s background was posted plus the number of tmes he
was interrogated, personnel reading the reports would then be able to link the j i interrogator. In reference o -
photos: Sometime after the CID investigation, arcund March or April 2004, {who lived in the same cell block
 lived in) came to me and handed me a thumb drive. When she 1old me that'a guy had toid her that zhe bad left it in the Internet

café. 1iold ber it waso't mine. We decided to look in the t hom it belonged to. We saw sev ! of MPs
in several ph it J
and 10]d him we found

with dead bodies and viPs with detainees. W~ recognized
poked at the photos and 10id us to write

because the photos appeared to be something that shoulgd
ol me later that the photos were not that bad. I do not know what hﬁpmed
le to

pictures of detainees and how we had

after that. I know that one of the files had 40- s and thy re several files. 1 was shown some photos and was
identify some individuals. Photo 3 file aCi camers. There are some dog bhandiers
with two dogs barking at a detainee. was very close with They would both hang out and watch
movies together. She would sit on hi¥ lap or under 2 blanket very close to i, 1 saw because she and I lived in the same

sworn statements on what we knew.
arca and he would come ea (o visit ber. Photo 6 oc file nzmedwshowsa picture with an analyst who worked in
the FAC. He was called mm stand] jth his back facing us and he is looking down at naked cuffed

detain ound. Photo 23 oo fil how! leaning against the left wall facing the naked detainess on the
is in the photo as well. HE 1s wearing P shorts and is lookine sown ctain Photo 25 oo file
acing away looking down at the detaness. Photo 54 on file shows a CAC] employee)
wii a'Tinguist) interrogating a detaines who appears (o be in 2 dangerous stress position Siting oo a ir with his back
exposed a concrete floor to his back. The ICRC carme by 1o visit but [ was never made aware of the [CRC results.

-] Q. is there anything else you woul like to add we this statcrment”?

A. No.
T L i g = Smu:mcnu’fIIIfIIIIII!HIIHHIIHIHIIHIHHIIIIIIIHIIIH!IHIIIHHIIIHHIHIH/HW'

AFFIDAVIT

'-H‘— . BAVE READ TR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE |, AND ENDS ON PAGE BW.LLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS DF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | KAYE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAYE WITIALED THE BOTTOM OF CACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. 1 HAVE MADE THIS
STATEMENT FREELY WiTHOUT HOPE OF BENEAT DR AEWARD, WITHDUT THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERUION, UKLAWFUL INFLUENCE, DR UNLAWFUL WOUCEMENT.

{Sipaature of Pyrsan Making Statament!
WITRESSES: Subscribed and swom to beion me, & perann suthorized by ww 0
‘ Bomaynt gaths, tivs 18th  dayel MAY . 2004

# CRYSTAL CITY, V

DRGANIZATION DR ADDRESS {Sigaatura o} Peron Admencsianng Lath)

{Tyoes Name ll Parzon Agministenag Qath)

UCMJ, ARTICLE 36

DRGANEZATION OR ADDRESS {Authonty To Avmenciar Galbs)
TNITIALS DF PERSOX MAKING}T!T!MEN’] l
[ s 79 7
PAGE] DA FORM 2823, DEL 1998 Ard VI
AGO0O0258

DOD 000346






FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY -

CITF7-TFF-1 29 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

suerec

une 2004, the undersigned conducted a telephonic interview o
edical Corps. Sout.ﬁ Dakot National Guard,

2. (FOUOQ) was deployed o Abu Ghraib from early October 1o lste
Decernber 2003. He was the head of 2 medical team for detai in Camp Vigilant and
the security holds (inclusive of MI holds) in the Hard Site. was the

primary physician and supervised a physician’s assistant and several m: ics’ a total of 5-
10 personnel which constantly varied. His team worked in the medical treatment station
which was located across the road from Camp Vigilant. Camp Gancy received medical
suppon from a different medical team.

3, (FOUO) ”neither heard of or obscrved abuse while at Abu Ghraib. He
saw no indications o] abuse during his meamment of detainces. He recalled afier the first

visit of the International Comminee of the Red Cross (ICRC) they informed him they had

observe inee which they didn’t like; specifically ”
*dcscribad his treatment and records as
very good and detailed. When ed all records remained at Abu Ghraib and were

¢ de
turned over 1o his 'rcplacem:m,&]

" 4 (FQUO :alled the detaines involved in the shooting at Abu Ghraib -
He treated immediately following the shooting and evacuated the -
ctainee to the Combat Army Surgical Hospital (CASH). Upon return he

again provided him carc. He did not observe injuries or indications of abuse upon his
remurn. He did recall just before his departure in December and during his handover to

being treated for a dislocated shoulder. 'was treated
and evacuated to the CASH. He did not recall having a catheter or any ather
detainees with catheters. In accordance with standard procedure, a catheter would be
removed before a detaines’s return 1o the Hard Site.

5 (U) POC is the undersigned.

Investigsting Othcer

FOR OFFICLIAL USE ONLY
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Ve
PRVACY ACT ETATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Yatls 10 (SC Section 301; Tige § LASC Socwon 2951 E.0. 1307 twtadl Noworstaay 72 1943 3K,
MIICIFAL PURPOSE: Tnpﬂ—ﬂnmhmdﬁ-ﬂ_udﬁmmumw_
ROUTIBE USES: Youu sacial 30Ty Suomber is used a3 bn S6SiTeaY aiuarnats musns o iamtfcatien 1y Laciaee Sing ad sl
BISCLOSURE: Drsciesury o1 yaw Xocis! Secanty b I PARY.
1. LOCATION 2. DATE (rryyaibioy 3 T &. FILE NUMBER
Abu Ghraib. lkrag, APO AE 09335 200410417 1

6 SSN 7. GRADESSTATUS
1 e

rrectional Facility, Abu Ghraib, 1raq, APO AE 09335

3. DAGAMZATION DR ADDRESS
CAC], Abu Ghraib Co

, WANT Y0 MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNCER DATH:

T arrived at Abu Ghraib around on 8 October 2003 to work as 3 screcuet. When I first arrived, the Joint Inwerrogation
Debriefing Center was being swod up. m:mmyhukpom.lwuplmqum:mrmmrbmbcumm
Board (DAB) a interrogator. I had two Tiger Teams who reviewed the
board. Whet ] first armived to Abu Ghraib, | received an orientation from
Inserrogacion Rules of Engagement (IROE) and signed them a coupie of times
IWW There was sowe confusion: as to the lesdership oo site.

25 00 loan as the depury. There were so many units it was a bit coafusing. Every Sr
never wimesses but I knew of & detainee abuse j er knew of the use of dogs (other than miffiy
ACL the abuse oy my

personnel allegation was against
site jead, at that tume but before uld be done, Mr .M v
working i the DAB and the DAB's interzogazions techniques were to be direct y. neare that Ml
3 1nd Slaias deiacluded the oomments the other INSITORAtOrs mads,
U | alsc have no knowicdge of Ml encow
or v he Lreal . There was ane instane? where 1 did see some photos of d=ias
thumb drive was found io the Cyber Center and in order w find out who it belonged W, we
Jjthe office) opened. Th:g)hor.oswerc of dead derainees, some MP and Ml soldiers. There a
couldn't tell who the soldiers where. I kmew you couldn'i take photos like that so we turnad it is 10 the command,
We all wrote sworn staiements and tuned them in.  Prior to the investigation, 1 did hear of i
beard of prostiwtes, local natiopals living in the LSA, aicobol, cameras i the shower. 1 beli
iovestigalion was staried and I heard some folks were relieved. 1 did pot hear allegations of M1
bear an M] person was implicated but that was all. 1 don't know who it was.
Q. %oyou bave anything to add to this statement?
A. No

HHIEEE ST End of Suwmem//lIllIIHIHHIIII'IﬂIIIIIIHI”HIHﬂlﬂﬂlﬂHHIIINHH””H!

ement. 1did

10. EXWIBT 11, INET) AKING STATEMENT
PAGE 1 OF ALES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT ¢ — TAREN AT —_— fuTED

THE BOTTOM DF FACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR TNE ITTIALS OF THE PERSDN MAXING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER MUST RE BE WOICATED.
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AFFIDAVIT

\ _mvf READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THTS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE_£&, & TFULL Y UNTDIERSTANDG THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE, | HAVE INITIALED ALt CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUE

(Srgriorape of Sersan Making

Subscribad snd sworn 1o bafors me, » porson suthorized by law to

WITNESSES: '
- administer oaths, this J 3 day of @ﬂ‘ ’ ) 200 ‘/
" bu Ghr

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS iSipnarure of Person Adminustenng Oath}

Typed Name of Person Admvnisranng Dath}

UCMT Arfcle (3,

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS ' tAuthority To Administer Oaths)

INITIALS OF PEASON M, MENT
m PAGE OF PAGES

USAPA Vi 0D

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1938

AG0O000261 g

DOD 000349






r swmn?num ‘ 1

Y

For mae o s FO 2 L VOIS: the peupmmnt aquic i DOCSOPE

PRIYACY ACT STATENENT
AUTHORITY: Tie 10 USC Secwan 30; Tic S USC Secwen 7351, £0. 9397 dawd Noverkar 72, 1H4) 5300
SINCIPAL PURFDSE: Ta provai comvamsers sl iw i seraras) §Hoisls with sane by wristh Bdusmation fapy e seomsinly Wansdial
“ecni ADUYURE USES: Your secial saarity memher i yaad & an bSundl bitiorsbie SRS o/ iarcaficotmt 1 [acitzs limg and svwievl.
Dinclutort 6! Yo/ 90cial Eovuty Mt @ vouniary
:ﬂs;:ﬂt . m- 2 DATE 2Yryesdly 3. Tk 4. FRE MUMBER
151 Horizon Ridge Parkway, Henderson, NV 2004 /0606 ] 'iz ’I

MIDOLE . 55K 1. BRADLSTATIS
5. DASANLZATION 55

T2nd Military Police Company, 992 Troop Command, Army Natyoral Guard
L

, WANT T MAKE THE FOLLOWSNG STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

From 23 May 03 10 15 Oci 03, | was deployed 1o Abu Ghraib (AG) as the Commander of te T2nd MP Cnmpmy. My company'y
mission was 1o prepare the facility for use within three days with 2 follow-on mission of trainitig kraqi corrections officers jor the
cvennial uansition of AG into Iragi control. On 27 May 03 the first detainwes staried 10 amive. Umil the end of Jul 03, every .
detainee was crimunal. At the end of Jul, the ciminal prisoners were transferred 10 Rusafa in preparmion of a sus  mflux of
security detainees associated with operation VICTORY BOUNTY. When the sccunty boids started to COme 1o facility, 1

found them 10 be more disciplined and less rowdy than the gormal crim in the facility. Around the same
time a5 operavon VICTORY BOUNTY, the 205th M1 Bde arrived 10 set UD A KTecning
locaton (or the security holds. Once the M) Bde was on . recards keeping which had

previously been done by my company. During the iuual sei up of the interroganion site, we ket the M1 personne! tents and
escoried the detzinees Lo and from the interrogauon siie,  The interrogation site consisted of a couple of wms tha were open an
sides which allowed personnel t of the micrrogations. 1n early Aug 03, at around 1900, a 320th MP reponed to
me at 1300 he had been old by v place several detainees in the-sun and leave them there, A medic U
j and derenmaned ratet, bul no permanent damage was noled. ] reported the situation
In my opmion, was not surz of his linutation concerning the handling and interrogation of o5 -
ier tht incident, he re ould noi do any specidl interrogation techniques until he had something in writing umnﬂ
his boundanes. 1 never personally anended an interropaien and can ooty recall secing a detainee in an interTogation eal oo one
~ccasion with his anms putsirerched. 1 constamly walked around the facility and could see the imerrogarions as ey were
onducied in open-sided tents. | never witnessed any sbuse during these interrogations. In Sep 03, GEN MILLER vitied AG. .
vemHe spent most of his iume with e Ml folks, but he had an MP Captain on tke leam who provided information on how the MP's
GTMD supponed M) operations. Thest passive techruques included lisiening during dersinee conversations ind documeming the:
results for later use. The MP Capuin provided a soft copy of the Standard ing Procedures (SOP) for MP opermiions s the
facility at GTMO, We 100k the SOP and changed 1 \o make i1 applcable for our operations. There was nothing referencing M1
in the SOP. )}n my opinion, It was clear Gt the shif for the facilsty was poing 10 be M) coliectiop.  This was in comradiction ©

o originai musson. As 2 result of his visit, we placed an additional guard af the A. | had oo imerpreter for use.
On occasion. 1 could utilze the M) imerpreters for vanious aciivities. One panicular w always be available and
wanied 10 interpret for me when ] had contact wilh the Jocal lragt corrections adminig ff. This happened xo-ofien it

stanied 10 &t annoying.  Delinees were routinely sinpped searched during inprocessing and upon entering the hard sie. 1

A heard of a detainee baing ninppod as a form of hwnilistion. Oiher that then e incident already discussed wi
m never witnesscd any deisines abuse or malreayment while at AG. | never witnessed or heard of sny M) E’w

's 1o abuse the delainees 10 help with interrogations. | never witnessed or heard MP offer 1o abuse » Detiner

help with interrogations. A1 the beginning of Oct 03, we stared our \ransinon with the 372nd MP Co. The trantition consisied 0
a walkthrough and a night-seat-ride. One of the ammediate changes the 372nd made was 10 drop two security positions. ht
eppeared o me they had more guards working inside the facilny. 1 have seen the picrures and the actions depicied by the photos
clearly fali ouiside the doctninally suthorized restiraining techniques. MP training calls for the restraint (with handeuffs) and the

segregation of unruly detainess, Delamees were sinpped scarc ir inprocessing. but | pever witnessed or heard of &
detanet being sinpped as 2 form of humiliation, On 5 Jun 04 repaned 1o me thal on one occasion while working in
Irag, an OGA member asked her 10 Jook ai a naked detaines as umiliauon. She indicated ghe refused, but did pot

report the information 10 anyone at that lime.

Q: Do you have anything 1o add to 1his sutmtm

A RO LRI HTEEIEREE LN I T R T Ay T T
W BRI T DETERG of Satement! 1 HILNEEI BT TR

10. LXIBT 11, WIALS OF G STATEMEMT w
i I w PAEIF 2 p

ODITKWAL PAGES BUST COW 1avw TNE KEADUNG “STATEMENT DF TAREN AT

— e

vefm BOTTOM OF LALH AGLY ITONAL PAGE WUST BEAR THE NITIALS DF THE PERSON MAAG TNE STATENENT, AND PAGE NUMNBER MEST BE B WOICATED.

DA FORM 2823, DEC 1588 DA FORM 2027, L 7L IS OREOLETE e

AGD00D262

DOD 000350






p .

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS o &f Person Adminittanng Gath/
5U.5.C. 303 :
™. DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS fAveranty To Aswamisr Do)

MTATHEHT {Canpinpet!

~.

AFFIRAYIY

. . HAVE READ DR HAVE HAL READ Y0 ME THIS STATEMENT

iCH BEGINS DN PAGE 1, AND ENDS DN PAGE “{=3 2. 1FULLT UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BYME. THE STATEMENT 1S TAUE. | HAVE SNTIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INTIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS
STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT 0R REWARD, WITKOUT THREAT OF PUMISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL WFLUENCE. OR UNCAWEUL INDUCEMENT.

WITNESSES: Sutacnbed and swem 1o befsve ma. 5 persen sathodited by bew 1s
: ) Sdeminia1er aaths, the 6th_ dayel Junc . 2004
n_Henderson, Nevada

ANITIALE OF PEESON MAXING STATEMENT W
I ‘ ' : - : PAGE 1w PAGES

PAGE 7, D4 FORM 2873, DEC 1998 ' " . _ s L0

AGO000263

DOD 000351



PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHDRITY: Yicke 10 USE Sacticn 301; Trte § USE Section 2051; E.0. 9397 dated Nevamaer 22. 1543 /SSW).
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provice commanders and bew wwforomnant officiats with means by which istormetion mey be accurately idestifisd.

MOUTINE USES: Your 3ocial secwity number is uas &3 an asdrtionallatemate means of idantitication fo feciitats Koy sad mreval.

DISCLOSYRE: Disciosurs ol yeur 3002l JCwnity numbe: ts yoluniary.

1. LOCATION 2. DATE /¥YYYMMDD] 3 TME . g |4 FILE HUMBES
Abu Ghraib, Iraq, APO AE 09335 2004104727 1415

7. GRADE/STATUS

NAME 5. SSN
S i
1. OREANZATION OR ADDRESS

66th MILITARY INTELLIGENCE GROUP, Deployed to Abu Ghraib Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, Iraq, APO AE 09335

IR
_ WANT T0 MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

I arrived at Abu Ghraib mm to conduct interTogation operations. When I first arrived to Abu Ghraib, [ received

2-3 days of orientation. gave 2 briefing on Interrogation Rules of Engagement (IROE). She discussed the right and
left limits and we signed a for record stating that we knew and understood those limits. There was nothing out of
the norm from the school instruction. I never wimessed detainee abuse but 1 had beard rumaors once the investigation began. [
never heard anyone tell the MPs to "soften up” a detaipes or give them "The Treatment.” The MPs would be told when 2 guy
was an "asshole.” I was pot aware of any phote:s on detainees. On 14 December the as the Section Chicf for Special Projects,
one of my interrogation teams requested the use of dogs for adetainee captured in copjunction with Saddam Husscit, At
approximately 0200nrs, 1 requested the dogs from COL PAPPAS and he stated that he wold call higher 1o request permission. I
began writing the memo IAW our IROE and an hour Luter it was approved and I was given the guidelines for using the dog. Thef
dog did oot hurt anyone as it was always about $ feet away from the detainee. I was standing to the side of the dog handilers
during the entire time that the dogs were used for this interrogag ived at Abu Ghraib, I do not remember who was
the FOB Commander. Sometime during my degloym:nt here, k commangd of the FO eotire
site, there was an increase on force protection. but nothing else o. I do not know what Ty
was, The chain of command was very convoluted. The relationship with the MPs was good but there .
Some of the issues were escort duties. They would escort at the beginning and then those duties became the M}'s responsibilities.
Q. Do you have anything to add Lo this staiement? :

A. No
L T T L L L T T T 3 Ve A SmLemznufllIl!lllﬂlIlIh‘II!IIIIIHII/IIIIIIIHHIHIIHHIIIHIIIIHIIII!“.

10 EXHIBT 11. INITIALS DF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT P_
PAGE1OF  _Z— _ PAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADWG "STATEMENT OF TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE MITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NLWBER MUST BE BE INDICATED.
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AFFIDAVIT

I, . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS DN PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE a . 1 FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE, | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORAECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEF|T OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THHEAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, D

{Signature of Person Making Statement) .

WITNESSES: Subscribed and swom to before e, & person mhonud by isw.t0
) i ayot A pr. . 2u0h

ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS {Signature of Parson Admiristanng Outh)

yped Name of Person Adrmini

e Arhicle I3

{authority To Administer Oaths]

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

L8 an-

INITIALS OF PERSON MAK| TATEMENT
: PAGE ) OF o) PAGES
USAPA V1.00

PAGE 3. DA FORM 2823, DEC 1988

AGO0Q00265

DOD 000353






PRIYACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHDNITY: Titie 10 UST Sactian 301: Trihe 5 USC Saction 2051; E.0. 9387 dated Nevambar 72. 1943 SSN),
PRINCWAL PURPOSE: Tommuwummmmnmmmhwm
ROUTINE USES: ‘ Tour sacisl Security mavber |8 sad a3 an sdditionaliitemats masns of iestification 10 laciiate fing and metriaval

DLSCLASURE: Disclosure ol yaur social 3eCUrily nuTTber i3 YOlunLalY. .
1, LOCATION 1 2. DATE (YYYYMGLED)! ER
Abu Ghruib, Irag, APO AE (9335 2004/04/27 143

TOLE NAME ﬁ SSH 7. GRADEISTATUS

B. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS .
66th MILITARY INTELLIGENCE GROUP, Deployed to Abu Ghraib Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, Irag, APO AE 09335

L , WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATE:

I arrived at Abu Ghraiberound the 1%th of October 2003 o work as an intwerrogator. Whez 1 first arrived to Abu Ghraib, 1
recejved three days of training from the 205th personnel and one GTMO repmcmﬁvc.h 1 was also mentored
Mﬂ interrogations. We received several briefings on detainee handling, and Interrogation Rules of Engagement
E) and | stfned the IROEs. The rraining was similiar to that tanght at the school, with the exception of stress positions
which were done sway with. 1 did not witness or know about sny detainee abuse or any photos of detsinces. 1 did not witaess

any use of dogs but | did bear from an E~4 from the 470th M1 who had an Iranian detainee ard a dog bi. the detainee on the tight.
conducted tiroe ang the r did oot incite the dog. The interroator present was

mterfogation bej
anchis analyst, ﬂ“&m PAPPAS was in charge of rhe cntire site. 1
belic ¢ Interrogation Conrrol Element. I was ncver aware of any MI personnel teliing MPs o “soften up”
& detainee or give themn "the treaunent.” | am refering 1o the reament being a bad thing. )

Q. Do you have anything to add 1o this statement?
A. No :
HEBEEI TR TR TEad of Stavemeqt/EHITHTREIETEEEENEIEEE T LT TN T L NGt i

10. EXHIBIT 1. G STATEMENT *

ADDITIDNAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT DF — TAKENAT  ___ OATED

THE LOTTOM DF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS DF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER MUST BE BF INDICATELD.
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AFFIDAVIT

.. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AKD ENGS ON Halk o4 TTv UNOERSTAND THT CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | KAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, LAWFUL INDUCEMENT.

{Signature of Ferson Making Statement).

Subscribad and swom to.before me, a parson authorﬁed by law to

WITNESSES: _ ?
inkar 03ths, ﬂ"ll!g of _Ap'ru l ._éoo q

ISignature of Person Aaministering Oath/}

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

ypad Name 6 n Admlm:rmg

MT  Arhcdle |

fAutharity To Administer Garhs}

LUC

OAGANIZATION QR ADDRESS
—

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING ST
. PAGE oF PAGES |
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SWORN STATEMENT
For use of this 10-m. s8¢ AR 7130-15; the proponent agency i DOCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Swction 301; Trtie 5 USC Secuon 2851; £.0. 9357 daind Nevember 22, 1841 /SSA)
PRINCIPAL PUAPOSE: To prownde gdery and v #nt | olivtapis wilh means by whech intarmaunn may ba scourstely wantified.
ROUTIAE USES: Four socul 1ecurily manbe! i Lxed &3 30 addilicaliaitamate mess of Westitication 13 tacikiste filng and racrievsl.
Di§ CLOSYRE: Disclosum of your 300 secuniity mamber b volntary.
1. LOCATION 2 DATE (YYTYNNDOD) 1 TiMtE 4. FILE NUMBER
‘Buitding AT-5636 Gorham St; Fort Bragg, NC 28310 2004/06/15 lslﬁ_
B i1} £ §. 55A 7. GRADE/STATUS

E-4/AD

B. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
A Company, 519th Military Intelligence Batalion, $25th Miliury Inielligence Brigade

' i.—’-_77 . WANT T¢ MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

From 27 Jul to 2] Dec 03, ] was deployed to Abu Ghraib (AG), Irag with A Company, 515th M1 Bn. [ am a 97E Interrogator.
My initial mission upon my arrival to0 AG was to sct up the Lite Suppornt Area (LSA) and prepare {or operatons, The initial
mizsion of the tnterragarion facility was to tind members of the SADAAM FEDAYEEN. | conducied screenings, translation and
[interrogation support.  As Lime went on, the focus of the facility broadencd as AG became the central interrogation and debriefing:
icenter. Prior to initial operations, we were briefed on the Interrogation Rules of Engagernent (IROE), which catablished our left
Land right boundaries concerniog intgfgoeation techniques. At first, approvals were verbal, but as the IROE changed, writlen -
ppprovals became more prevalent, stablished the TROE. Initially the IROE was briefed during
shift changes and daily update briefs. I remember signing at least one memorandum stating I read, undersiood and would foliow
the IROE. 1 cannot compare the Afghanistan JROE with the Iragi IROE as 1 was not with cthe unit while they were in Afghanistan
In my opinion, the IROE was ciear and adequaiely eswablished our left and right boundaries concerning interrogation kechniques.
‘The approaches used during an inlerrogation were requested in [he interrogation plan which was done and approved prior 10 any
interrogation. The approval level d?::dud on the proposed approach. When the 325th M1 Bn personne] arrived at AG there
were several integrauon problems. 325th MI Bn personnel seemed mare interested in going home than in conducting the
mission. Over time both units avercame these issucs and we built a cobesive work covironment. The 205th MI Bde also
presented a prodlent in that seenied to micromanage operations aod would czuse more unnecessary work. The 72nd MP's were
the typical Army unit. There were a few soldiers who were unprofessional. The transition from the 72nd MP Ba 10 (be 372nd
MP Ln was rough. It appeared the 72nd MP Bn leadership was unclear in their methodology and there was only a three day
train-up for the 372nd MP Bn. In Dec 03, I did witness a guard dop being used in an interrogation. [ believe COL PAPPAS
authorized the use of the pusrd dog. The guard dog had 10 be muzzled and could not wuch the detainee. At Jeast 1wice duriag
imterrogarion, the guard dog was brought into the interrogation booth 10 scare the detainee. [ am not sure of the effectiveness of
this approach. A team from GTMO came 10 AG on 1wo occasions. On the first octasion, the GTMO teamn provided advice and
sagistance o the overall interrogation operation. On the second occasion, the tcam actually integrated into the unit and performed
interrogatons. On one occasion, ! did observe an Other Govermnent Agency (OGA) interrogation.  The line ¢f questioning was
not smooth, however, ] did not witness any detainee abuse. There was a ot of prexsure 10 produce reports regardless of '
intelligence value. fo my opinion, there was never chouph pressure to necessitife an interrogator bending the rules. During my
time at AG, [ did nor wimess any sbuse or maltreaunent of detainees. [ never witessed nor heard of any MI person asking or
insinuating that an MP should abuse a detainee. | never witnessed oor heard of any MP offering to abuse a detainee to assist
interropation operatons. | did not witness any nudity nsed {nr intereogation purpnses. 1 hexrd of occasions in which interfogators
and/or MP's would tareaten the delamness with the loss ot clothing, bedding and shoes if they did not cooperate. These were also
‘given back to the detainees as a form of reward for positive behavior. | never witnessed or heard of any unauthorized pholographg
taken of detainees. If T would have seen any unlawtul or sbusive behavior, | would bave reported it to my supervisor.
Q: Do you have anylhing to add (o this staiement?
P NI R T i L
R TR R LT TEND ﬁTEMENTIIHIIIIIHIIHUIIHHI/IHHHIJIIHHIHHIIH/HIII!HH
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9. STATEMENT Lantioves!

AFFIDAVIT E g g
, HAVE READ

ﬁﬂn’!l“ 07 PAGT 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. 1 HAVE INITIALED AL

STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUY HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT THREAY 0F PUNISHMENT, ANQ WITHOUTT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLLENCE, OR UMLAWFLL INDUCEME

- | FLRLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS DF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
NS AND HAVE WITHALED THE SOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAIMING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THS

_f.r)r-nﬂl

WITNESSES: Subzcnbed snd swom 10 belare me, & priken sutiorited by law 10
adwwresier oatha, tha ISth  dayet June . 2004
a Yort Brx
DRGAMIZATION OR ADDRESS . ISipnative of Pwzan Administueg Detk! |
vt Hacire w7 pazaes Rstomicny
5 U.S.CLA03
DRGANIZATION DR ADTRESS {Avtharity Te Adminestar Daths)
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‘STATEMENTO_ " TAKEN AT Camp Victory DATED 2004/06/16

MNF-], C2, IMIR

mas reinterviewed on 16 June 2004 by MG George R. Fay,

1 was. questioned in reference 1o interrogation plans: How were

interrogation plans created and what happened to them? The investigative team stated
they had not been able t0 find imerrogation plans. Again, I stateg that | arrived at Abu
Ghaaib an or about 12/13 September. The unit on site was the 519" M1 BN and ] arrived
with a small operations group from the 325% MI BN._A couple of days later, clements of
the 325" MI BN arrived to form up Tiger Teams. was in charge of the

" Interrogation Control Elements (ICE). My function to go through the files of
detainees being held at Camp Vigilant and dztermining who had not been spoken to and
still required to be spoke to and then prioritizing them for interrogations. 1 also went
through the files of detainees who had been transferred from Camp Cropper. 1 revicwed
their records and made sure the work we had done was in the file. There were sometimes
several documents missing from the detaince files. We would search for them on the
database .and made copies of the documents we could find such as missing (lIRs).
Interrogation plans were created by-the interrogator and then run through the first level
supervisor {senior interrogator). This was usually an E-6. The senior interrogator would.
go through the interrogation plan by adding, mentoring, coaching and then finally come
up with interrogator what was oing to happen. seqior jnterrogator approved it,

it would go to the ICE QIC, or or approval. 1 do not
know if the senior interrogators 100K every single interrogation plan to the ICE for
approval. | did nota interrogation plans in ginning. Sometime in carly

October, and ] were added to the listof
individuals who could approve imlerrogation plans. 1 felt'it was a good idea for me to.
review the interrogation plans to get a betier idea of was going on in the interrogations
_and | had to pet smart on the intcrrogation plans to be abic tn talk about them when-
persons visited Abu Ghraib and asked questions. 1 have no idca who ordered detainees to
be naked. I have no knowledge of detainees being naked during interrogations. I do not
remember when [ first went to the Hard Site. I know it was after the incident with the
three interrogators were caught conducting an unautherized interrogation. I remember
this because ] didn’t know where the area the unauthorized interrogation was. In the
beginning, the interrogations were being conducted in tents offset from the operauons
tent within eyeshot of Camp Vigilant and the Operations area. When we had exceptions
10 policy (such as sleep management) we made a photocopy and provided it to the MPs
so that they would w what - going on. In late November, | walked through the
hard site and “ pointed out that there were two exceptions with

handwritten notes requesting a detainee to be stripped down. He asked me if I wanted

them stripped naked. 1 told hirn mo and 1 scratched over the writien_notcs an
initialed it. 1 then went to go speak to his boss
and told her that we had a problem and that she needed 10 gét with the interrogator

tall that that was a no go. She said she would speak to him. 1 also 1ol
belicye the intcrrogator who had written the statement was

He came up to me and told me no problem chief. | went back 10
L q/‘
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statevent O TAKEN AT Camp Viciory DATED 2004106116

gck and speak to q"l didrn’t see any problems. During the time |
approved interrogation plans, 1 did not approve nakedness and I read them thoroughly.
Interrogation plans were kept soft copy in the databasc and hard copy in the dosster of
the detainee. 1 will state that I did go back and looked at some files and there were
screening sheets and IIRs missing. Sometimes an interrogator would take out a
document, review it and use it for other interrogations and sometimes they would get lost.
Personncl in charge of making syre docume tation was in the files were the heads of
sections for each section, such Hd MYSELF for OPS. as
responsible for QCing the files and making si¢ the right paperwork was there. ibe ICE
was responsible for interrogation files. The Detainee Assessment Board would review

files before they went up to the magistrate cell for the releasc board. An assessment
written up by the DAB would accompany the file. The assessment had to be there in

order for the Magistrate Cell 10 review the files. Personng] working in the magistrate cell
were IN reference to the shooting
incident; 1 was not one of the individuals who responde to the shooting initially. I was

a1 Chow when the incident occurred. 1 found out about it when 1 was passing through the
ICE. 1 asked about the situation and was told it had been locked down. NO one could Eo

in or out becausc the MPs were going to do 2 complete search. 1 was tasked b

-10 work in helping identify who from the Iraqi Police were possibly involv
and worked with and myself had two HMWWVs.
One of the detainees was sifting 1n the vencle | ntifying the IPs. The MPs and MI

personne! would bring out an IP and the lights of the vehicles would be on shinning on
the IP. The detainee in the vehicle would then identify who from the IPs werc possibly
involved. A total of 11 IPs were identified. All IPs were returned back to the Hard Site
and lincd up. _Once we completed this task, 1 typed the list_of those identified and
provided it to He in tum would tum it over to |
do not know who made the decision to keep the 11 IPs detained. | was not aware any
interrogations werc going on or that dops were used during interrogations. The dogs
were used 1o scarch the cells, but ¥ was not there. 1 was outside identifying the IPs for
about three and a half hours or so. 1do not know who was the MI person in charge. Alll
know is that | got my erders and tasking form 1 do not know if he was -
telling other M1 persons what 10 do. There were not supposed to have been any
intertogations going on. The only thing that was supposed 10 happen was gain an
assessment of every IP; those en shift and those who would come on shift the following
days. Assessments typically last around 15 minutes and | assume that these assessments
should have been the same, as they are meant not 1o be lengthy and fast but accurste
enough to identify anyone of intelligence value. This went on for another two to three
days. The dogs came in 1o the Hard Site somctime beforc 1 went outside and my
understanding was that they only guarded in the open hallway but | never saw the d
never saw the detainees or IPs naked that night. After | completed the task given b)“
1 passed the area where the IPs were lined up. [ do somewhat recall any
chaotic situation in the area where the IPs were lined up. No one told. me that
interrogation techniques had been lifted and that we had a bianket approval the night of
the shooting. | do not know who called the dogs or ordered interrogations. There were no
interrogation plans or results to thoss interrogations. Q. Is there anything elsc you
like to this statement? A. No. /iiiiiiiiiifEnd of Statement//[i/I11HH
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SWORN STATEMENT

HOUTINE USES:

AUTHORITY" Tile 10 USC Section 01 e B

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide cammanders hd law entercement officisls with maens b : ‘
Your social secunty nuMmber 13 used 83 AN sddrionaliishemale maani of wentificauon 10 {acilitate ting and retrevel

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
USC Secuon 2951: E.O. 9357 daled Novemner 22, 1943 ISSN)
y which informaton may bo accuraiely

ISCLOSURE: Disclosure of your sotisl sacunty number It voluntary,
?_ LOCATION 2. DATE (YYYYMMOD! \3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
CAMP VICTORY, BAGHDAD, IRAQ 2004!0_5!06

' T HAME, MIODLE NAME
. a. DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

CITR-7. BAGHDAD, IRAQ

, WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

seven ipdividuals in my platocn, were to belp nm

)

s1an developing a work schedle for all my folks.

ew why we were

operations und
opcrations guties.
pecied everyonc w
Lhought be was goverming our Opcrpi
He would go o the Hard Sitz wikh
of times on detainee not of M1 issues (€
was. Some more personne] form 323rd joined w
Once COL PAPPAS arrived on camp 1 didn't 3c¢

werz being dropped off without anyooe

1 was assigned 1o Abu Ghraid oo 12 Seprember 2004 s e Pw Phlnmiln&rlurm ML M{ duties, along with the other

N already al Abu ;
the Joint kmerrogation Debriefing Coniet olC. Thenm-rumm and under e
command af MP BDE. My uadersianding wai that ibe Forward Operating Base at Abu Gliraib was the
responsibility of the MP assets. The first day we amved was kind of bectic. We had 10 set urp out billcang area, life suppon and

armived persopnc] were forming the Tiger Teams (1 X Lniermogator, ) 3 Analyst, L x Translaor). Afer three 10 four da
y began LOIETTUEA000 operations. My folks dic not ieTrogate they sayed © work in the opcrations secion.
ibcre and undersiood our mission 1 beg
Tc

¥ We cuntioeed Lo refine ous role and responsibilives well mio February when ! finally deparied. The training began -
.V around threc days after we arrived around 17 -18 Sepuember, The newly armived persaonel were rained on inlerTogaBos -
operations. They were 10ld and shown where detainecs werc being beld and who was LT and why. They were thought
nestiops and apswers echoiques &8 well. Before inierroganon operaians began, we did not get Lhe Intcrrogation Rulesof
%.nmr.mr.m but myt:a.mhadjunuri\rcd from Camp Cropper and they were aware of the IROE. 'nrnwnomuhlinnymmd
that my eam imew what the ruley were. Omce we received the IROEs. they were: no differcot than what we bad learmed at the
school o what the inwerrogation Field Manwal sured. | belicve we would discuss tbe Geneva Coavenlion during normal
conversabon. Although we did pot get additional Gepeva Convention trainiog, O aware of due Lo the schooling
i time the 20 additova) M personde ‘ H i
arrival (around 13-14 Sepember).
wed up around the 16w of Scpem!
ey a:+IV2d. [ belic be was 1 charge of Force

bepinmng. Omea COL PAPPAS became the FOB Commander, things did change some. The Egtry Coutrol Point to the Hard Sie
was bener tacked. The movement of detainoes was smootber. The MPs were more responsive to our oeeds and requcsts.
Commuoicaticus with the MPs was better. | Was DEver awarr, OF witoess any detainee physical abusc of ina jate behavior of
intcrropation techniques, apy pholos of videos. A couple of umes | was asked o observe an intersogation whick possibly fell oo
the border Linc. | cbserved it and po ina atz wechmques maienabized. | heard of an unauthorized wierroganos by thnee
ipterrogators. The erTOZALOrs OOK emale detainee and became fresh wilb ber. 1 didn*1
were pulied off wierrogat kpow what pumushment they received. Apother &
off s clothing. was also wilh ber. They. were pulled off inte JORS .

her Team Leader additiona) maining oo (RO . They were not tny inieryogators. o mid November, 3
group from GTMO came §0 ADstruct us on the GTMO sole ané worked amongst owr ranks. Ghont detaineoes are hose detainoes

who amve W the 1TDC 204 are not processed but beld over for Onber Government Agencies or TF-121. They are aat gives an 1S
uou} their sws 15 identified. ‘When 1 furst arrived, there was Do memorandiun of agrecment as o wha 1be

aod & memoTandwm was agreed upon all parbes. Thus ocewred someame befors Chnstmas.
o these ghost detainces. Once they were med over 10 Us. Their paperwork followsd s fow days Iater.
wuhmonzrsbmwewmsoshonnfpmmelmgetmmgpauohmd. 1 knew thal there were (-36 in country aed in the

rations io the Joint Interrogatan Detxicfing ,
hraib. The Company Commander was and the firg seTECADl Wl

About a day aher § arrived, 20 more MJ personnel armived. Thexe pewly

. 19
10 days lawer. COL
100 many changes. The communications with the MPs was nol good &t the

id. The istcrrogators
a detaibee $iip
gve SBE wai counseled by

knownp. Opce COL PAPPAS amved oo the

€ were y hit
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TAKE

STATEMENT OF __-_Z

because they were parl of

\ a7 CAMP VICTORY  payep 2004105/06

g. STATEMENT (Continued! _ o
area but they were never deployed 10 our arca COL PAPPAS brought in the 165th M1 BN who bas LRSD 10 assist wilb e
wwers. There wasaSwmmmpnyﬁommcnndwhenwurived. I really do not know why we WorL Jegy
1 know that the soldiers ofien voiced their concern of our locabon and the mortar attacks. | know who3 and

P s

of the 325th and arrived after

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORREC

CONTAINING THE STATEMENT.

WITNESSES:

AFFIDAVIT
1, : . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE__J . 1FULLY UND

| HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHO
THAEAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFUL IND

EASTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
ONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM DF EACH PAGE

UT MOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
UCEMENT.

T

{Stgnatura of Person Making Siatemant!

Subscribed and swom 1o belore me, & persoh authonred by law 10

admunster onths, this _6TH  day of MAY 2004
s CAMP VICTORY, BAGHDAD, IRAQ
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS [Stgnature Of Person Acmissienng Qarnl
mm Adirerasterilg Cath]
UCMI, ARTICLE 136
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS |Authorty To Admurustar Oaths)
INITEALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
paGE 2 OF 2 PaGES
PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1398 UEAPA ¥1.00
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FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

CJTF7-TF-FAY 9 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Telephonic Intcwicw-Dm

Q) On 9 Junc 20 ¢ undersigned conducted a telephonic interview with Mr.
DIA. as deployed to Baghdad as a debriefer with the Iragi

Survey group (ISG). His team, comprised of both military (DIA) and Other Government
Ageny (OGA) perscnnel, routinely coordinated with CITE? and conducted debriefings of
dctainess at Abu Ghraib. Their Points of Contact were and two Scrgeants,
names unrecalled, who ensured detainees were available and brought to the interrogation
facility for ISG. All of the ISG debriefings he was knowledgeable of occurred in the
interrogation site known as “wood,” outside the cel blocks. was never in the
Hard Site. ever observed or heard about abuse of detainees. The ISG
conducted “debrieiings™ vice interrogations and no coercive methods were employed.
The Interrogation Rules of Engagement he was provided and signed were compliant with
the Army FM and Geneva Conventions as he recalled. Mr.ﬂonid not recall any
names (or nicknames) of his OGA co-workers.

2. (U} POC is the undersigned.

Lieutenant Colonel, USA

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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25 June 2004

THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT IS BASED ON A TELEPHONE CONVERSATION
BETWEER -3, 28™ COMBAT ARMY SURGICAL HOSPITAL
(CASH). ' ‘ '

On 25 June a1 approximately 1500hrs, | phoned the 28" CASH to request a list of all
medical personnel tasked to support Abu Ghraib prison. stated the 28" CASH
had no personnel assigned to Abu Ghraib but that they did support prisontrs form Abu
Ghraib when they were transported to their facility to receive medical suppor. He
provided a list of all PAs or doctors assigned to the CASH form Mid November to Mid
December. Document is attached.

MAJ,
Investigating Officer
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SWORN STATEMENT
For use of this torm, see AR 190-4E; the proponent agency is apcsors

PRIVACY ACY STATEMENT

5C Section 301; Titie & USC Secton 2981 EC. 9387 dated Novamber 22. 1943 (SSN).

AUTHORITY: Titie 10U
ormation may be accurately identihed.

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide cammandars and law sntorcemant officisls with mesns by which in
al security numbar 15 used 8BS ar sddnonaliaiernate meand of identitication 1o facilitate {ilng and rewneval

ROUTINE USES: Your $o0

DISCLOSURE: Disclusurs af your spcial security number is voluniary.

1. LOCATION 2 DATL IYYYYmMmBoD) 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
METRO PARK SPRINGFIELD, YA : 2004/06/01 /4 30

IDDLE NAME 6. S8N 7 GRADE/STATUS
Clv

i
—

B. ORGAN
Titan Corp, with Duty Iraq

9. .

. WANT TQ MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH,

essing consisted of oriemation oi the fat_:iliry and training on the

mvuj at Abu Ghraib (AG}on 24 or 25 Oct

IROE and Geneva Cpnvcnlicn, presented b

1 hiad 10 sign a siatement that 1 had rec ing o0 them.
We, on 2 monthly basis on the [ROE's. These monthly sessions were presemed b
tobd us tal any request for measures listed on the IROE wouild have t© be roul& .

the 1i as initially assigned to the Dewainee ‘Assessment Board for two days and

for approval.
dif i ;

in the infciTDgalion sites, but on onc occasitl,
r Saddam's capturc | was moved 10 the Special Operations Team, Wo
I went into Biock 1A on occasion Lo pick up or Tcturn 3 detainec.
B QUCIEd UMEFTOgalions Ul Ihe Shower arca or swairwell of 1A; we also used the "wood site™ and the "metal site”.
1 did not sce or bear about any instance of abuse of pumitation of detainees. 1 did not sec or bear about the use of dogs for
imerrogation purposes. 1 did bear dogs barking as they weTt being uscd by the MPs to search cells the night of e shooting. bu!
did not actually sce them i use. 1 ¢id not see or hear about delzinces being stwripped and kept naked in cells, nor did 1 sce or hear
about detainces having to wear womcn's underwear. | had heard about sieep management where in a detainee would only be
allowed an hour or so slecp in a 24 hour period. ] do not recall siecp management peing used on any interrogation tcam 10 which
| was assigned. ] do not recall any instance of a detaince bewg thrown to the ground from a vehicle and/or dragged on the

ground. ) domot havc any knowledge of OGA personac! downg uthorized interrogations. ] was reassigned from AG on
Feb Bth 2004 Q: ls there anything you wish 10 add” A: No :
_&':\.r..'.'ffHum.'.f,wmHH/.'ummmruuHHHIHH;/HHmmnm—:N TIMENT e g T
—\ . ) . _._7‘4"'-
S
.
\QWL
F=//°"'£ e
A
. b
- ~
_‘_\\\\
T A 11, INITIAL HEON MAKING STATEMENT '
PAGE 1 OF AGES
ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING *STATEMENT TAKEN AT DATED

THE BQTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BFAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
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STATEMENT OF _—‘ 1aKen a7 _Springfield, VA paTep 2004/06/01
—

g. STATEMENT {Continued)

AFFIDAVIT

. HAVE READ DR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
ULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT 15 TRUE. | HAVE INITIALE CORRECTIONS AND HAVE NITIALED THE BOTTDM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE. OF LHEUATTUL N T

WITNESSES: Subscnbed and swérn to before me, » parson autharized by law 10
June 2004

agrmirister osths. thie 1
2t Springfield Vv

ORGANIZATION CR ADDRESS misrering Qath)

{Type erson Administenng Oathl
s USC 303
ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS Tagthonty To Admimster Daths)
TNITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT ) m———
o ' PAGE ) AGES
PAGE 3. DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 . USAPA VY.
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SWORN STATEMENT
Far use of thia ferm, see AR 15G-45; the propoment apency is 0DCSDPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Title 10 DSC Secton J0 1 Titke & USC Section 2851, £.0. 9397 gared Nevembe: 22, 1843 55N}
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: | u proviim © TETande:s and tew pniarcament oilcials with megns by whach IntoATEION My BE ACCUIBY entted.
ROUTHME USES: Yous socibl Secordy mumbet o wsed a5 #n scdeas/aiteinate mesns of dentification te |nciktate ibng and rereieval.
DISCLOSURE: Deccissire of your S0Cial JECUTITY MHTAN 6 VIRMLITY 2
{. LDCATION 2 DATE [YYYYMNDD) 3. TiME 4. FILE NUMBER
DARMSTADT, GERMANY . 2004/05/1 1

Fi IDOLE WAME B. SSN 1. smuusmu;P

8. DRGAMIZATIDN DR ADDRESS .
302nd Military Imelligence Batralion, Heidelberg, Germany APO AL 09102

=

_ WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

booths, whcrc.CAMP Vigilant'and CAMP G

gquestions wiuch We
Inierrogal plan. Other mierrogators did not allow vou 10 ask questions they just wanied you 1o take notes and do
We also received-some geERCra
of Engagernenis (1RO
But the section leader

of iterations of the TROEs. 1 was not laught what was acceptable or
iscussed 1 with us. 1 understood that | was not i0 touch a defainee.

had been untruthful. The MP (1 do not recall who they were

had blood on his head. t the MPs were
as weil and maybe even
0 no! khow what they did. This ocCUrT
orung of dctamnecs. On anolher ime { saw the MPs making two detainees do PT. These two detainees had
The MPs could moke them do MP but we were not allowcd ND ont ever sug
but we knew they could use the necessary force hen detai
delainees or dogs being used for interTogations. 1 did sce
once. She took a phato of 3 detnines whe was standing neAl b
protos of detainees. Tae MPs bad cameras angy
arca but | did not know of the lsalation Area.
aliowed to since the NCOs dides '
but | never dealt with them.
they ohtained from the detainels even when they belonged 1o us. ere was a time &
with weapons. 1 didn't motice the weapoas until after they had walked out. 1 notified

ard S w photos were not allowed in the

and stated

celt naied. | pever heard or was aware of any M1 personnel 1ell MPs to “soften-up” or give

and kept watch on hun. We would check hus fingers and hands (o cosure he had good blood circula
with the interrogauon plan. When I first amived. tbere were rumars of prostitution and

I arrived a1 Abu Ghraib in TMd October 2003. 1am a 96H and when | arrived at Abu Ghraib 1 was assigned as an Assislam
incrrogation Analyst to work with Interrogators. My focus was Extreme Fighters. The first day we received a jour of the site.

| information on the Geneva Convention but no classes on . We received the Intcreogation Rules

ficr an inicrrogation. | went bpstairs o TIER 1 to drop off the detainee to the MPs
ing elsc. | handed the detainee to the MP and they asked me if how come the

cklcs.
was a male, not an NCO and had a brown T-shirt) 100k the detaince and jerked him toward the wall. The detaince hitllhc railing.
i allowed
They reponed it 10 cimc“
somcume in Novernber afier we 100
gesied that it was okay for MPs to abusc delainets
o], 1 never saw or had any knowlcdge videos of

o always had & camera) take phatos of detaince
This is the only time | knew of anyonc wking

COs were there and they saw her so 1 just assumed they

ciainces delivered by Other Gorerament Agencies (OGA)
dealt with them a lot. OGA never shared any intelligence
As went it to the ceil

Do not know what happened after that. We had a shonage of clothimg for detainees. We did nol have cnough blankets, jumpsuits,
shoes. or other stems. | saw a naked detainee who wat thrown in the black room (the Hole). The detzinee was a troublemaker

and had gotten violent with a lemale MP. 1was told that the MPs policy when placing a detaince in the Hole was 1o put him 1n the]
the treatment” to detainees. One
stressed posiion | wimessed only once was when we had a detzinee handcuffed to the floor but we only did it for a shon period

W

the research.

not acceptable |
} remember

just that he

raped a boy.

interragation

it was WrORg.

following

W oldiers were caught with aleohol and they recery lost
I didn't really koow DJ but his analysi w
¢ anvihing else 1o add 10 this stalement?
‘ EnD of STATEMENT

L;owrnf"if __._,_.-——-"_"_"——-“._

e

e

THE BOTTOM OF FACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE IKTTIALS OF THE PERSON MAXING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE WUMBER MUST BE BE WOICATED.

e Fuil a3 —
,_.—/
10. EXHIBIT 1. INITIALS OF PERSON MAXING STATEMEN "
TAGL 1 OF L5
ADDITIONA! PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE WEADING “STATEMINT DF TAKEN AT DATED
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SWORN STATEMENT

" For use of this form, see AR 190-45; the proponent sgency i ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Secuon 301: Title 5 USC Sechon 2951 E.0. 9397 dated Novsmbe!
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provige commanders and Isv enforcemen

¢ offwisia with means by which information may bo accurately

727, 1943 [SSN).

CAMP VICTORY, BAGHDAD, IRAQ

2. DATE (YYYYMM 3. TIME
2004/05/0 13

ROUTINE USES: Your socisl secunty number is uaed as BN sdoitional/aliernale means of identilication 10 lacilitate fikng and retneval.
DISCLOSURE: Disclosure of your sociat sscunty framiber 13 Vet any.
1, LOCATION 4. FILE NUMBER

AME, MIDDLE NAME

7. GRADE/STATUS
CcPT

8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

172ND MILITARY POLICE COMPANY, CUMBERLAND, MD (DEPLOYED TO IRAQ)

when ! neededd something dooc. ngs happened. 11 wasn't unti} Jater that ] found ou
" o't approachable. I begana Relief in Piace with the previous Company Comman
ve me a tour of Abu Ghraib. He took me o e Hard Site in particular, WING

the previous y T T
Wa ! ng wrong, but would go to Wing 1 with MI folks
Organizaton Agencies (0GA) 1 just figured they knew wha I pr WErT an t i

visits were at all holrs not just during one They saw wi
Maybe: | should have Jooked inio it. Both nd [ did ask
received hem, There was some confusion 510 Who was ho. We had

was down at Wing 1. Ouoe ol be iplemUEaLrs
getting him into he cell, e pushed the prison

couidn't he done.

morning reports (o the 320tk BN of the sy of the construction and poss le compleion

1 warked closcly with the lragi supply persoo an
primary respoasibility for all supplies at the prison.

ladies underwear or anicles of clothing either w0 1 1o gmall. § al: w that we had to give
alsn. The command climate was not good at AB
asked me to do apything that was unprofessiopal.

9.

I armived 1o Bu Ghraib on 15 role was 372nd MP Co Commander. When | ammived
of e 320th MP Bo. | belicve as tn charge of the Ml folks. He was involvedd
¢ nadc

controlled sceess 1o the wing They had the keys and would let people in and out. During one
was sh ;ced that the detainees in Wing 1 were faked. There was onc with
1oned that and (old me that the Ml folks told him that was an M1 procedure. 1 then

never did guestinn this to any MT Persoa.
for the MI Rules of Engagement but | never
; without nametags; there were folks in
civilian clotbes, detainees, and ghost detainees. It was very frusradng.  Things got a linle beer after the International
Commnaty Red Craoss (ICRC) cume o visit for the second ume. Somerime aRer that, they stopped having naked detaipecs. This
wcurTed sumewme tn December. 1 pever saw ; swieupe of any detainee ahuse by M! personnel except for one day when 1
gwadl, bip guy) ap Ml person. 00k a detainee to a cell. While be was
Dcell by giving him a push with his foot. 1t wasn't real hard. 1 went up o
Bim and wid hun o siop hat. There wis no other abuse by M] penonnel that 1 was aware of. 1 have no knowlelge of any phols
ot videas belore the investigation began. The unly wme | heard of dogs used was afuer the shooting. I never saw or heard of M!
using dogs duning their intzrrogations. W used to get monar anacks a fow tmes a week. That was a big issuc with soldiers
because nothing was really being done. 1t caused a g morale 1ssue. We recammended placing sandbags around the holding arcas
bul were lald the detanees could nde behind them. We also reguesied hunkers to be placed in e hoiding area but was nid that

Q. Do youhave anything clsc to add to this stalement”? Yes, 3 i as the construction of the
prison. | had weekly visits and corresponded through email wi d f the CPA. ] gave
{11 B

at the prison. The Coaliticn Provisional Authonity (CPA} bad e
ere werc many limes that we bad oo supplies o inciude jump-suits worn by
the mmaws. Often when we did get a supply, it was of very few quantities aod sizes. This was a major issuc carly on and sficra

few monibs we were able 10 maiNtain some sort of siock. Often hecause of the lack of supplics many inmates were forced W wear

10 open-up the rest of the prison because of over wc camps. Another area | was focused on was supplics for the prison.

as a moral commander and ncver gave 1oc an order of
25 m my opinien afraid of BG K ARPINSK! and | cven

T,
1.

tice hy M. | did think there
d some folks from Other
was an acceptahle pracice.

There was a buge push

the females some male ilems

MUST BE BF INDICATED.

told him a few umes that [ would try and answer be 3 ¢ best | could. | only did this because she liked to
bumijiste him or belitUe him whe 5 we walked arousd the pnson, | tned 1o answer a8 ofen 83 1 could for him.
Also, 1 Tad listie 1o no respect he maide comments regarding the reserves and | feel be was extremely prejudice.
I saw sions 1a he showed po respect 10 anyonc. | witmessed him walk by a NCO who sajuted
him an icw him compietely off. The NCO was very upsct and said” 1f you wapt respect sir, it goes both ways!™ |
have rec INSK] oo TV, | towally disagree with several of her statements. First off, bow can anyonc s
MP's are not respoasibie? 1 take full responsihility for my scven soldicrs and believe they arc the main problem oot
10, EXHIBIT _ I 11N MAKING STATEMENT

PAGE 1 OF PAGES
ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STA TEMENT D) TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND FAGE NUMBER
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STATEMENT OF m - taxen a1 CAMP VICTORY _ parep 2004/05/03

9. STATEMENT (Contirued) _ ) _
The last thing | would like 10 say is BG KARPINSKI has been a total disappoin| ve ber facts straipht and the
only time we saw her was when the media or a V1P was present. She also ma ber scapegoat and blamed

everything on bim, Her siff was the most incompetent and | never pew who the
Q. lsthcmanylhingclseyouwouldlik:maddlothissummmﬂ :

A. No.
wﬂlﬂIHIIIIIIIHIHIfIIIIHIIIHIIIIUIHIIIIHIHHIHIHIHI!HEnd of Summtﬂl!UIHII”UIIIUIIHHI!IHIHIII!HIHHHHHth'llf

~. -
~ P
R

Jorkin]

-~

B -

/

| , HAVE AEAD OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH‘BSGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE_ 2'wP v, LNDERSTAND TAE CONTINTS GF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALt CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. 1 HAVCE MADE TH8S STATERYE W™ FRETO Y THOLT HOPE O BUNEFT DN OE VAL, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFLUIL b+ ‘j l~ il F AP N T

= ... AFFIDAVIT

Sratement)

WITNESSES on authonzed by law 1o
sdrminister onths, thes __ 3 day of MAY . 2004

st_CAMP VICTORY, B

{Signaiure of Person Admunisiering U8 J".

/

yped Narme of Person Adrrumsrenng_ﬂ.}h}
UCMI, ARTICLE 136

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS fAuthoriay To Admeruster Osihs)
INITIALS OF PEASON MA T ! ﬂ '
: PAGE OF PAGES
PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DEC 1938 . ' USAPA V1.00
AG(GO00281

DOCD 000369



SWORN STATEMENT

For use of thia torm. see AR 190-45; the proponent agency is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

10 USC Sectwon 301; Tuis § USC Secuon 205Y: £.0. 9357 dated November 22, 1947 (55N

AUTHDRITY: Tilu ove! .
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provite cormmandess and law ¢nlorcement ofizimis wilh means by which inlorimation mey be accurately
ROUTINE USES: ¥ouw Bofial secunity number 19 ulen a8 80 dciiionAlzAiLEmatE MesAs of idenuficelon 1o tacinate THNG and atIvA
pISCLOGURE: Dusciosure of your social zecurny number IS vOlUntary.

2. DATE 1y Y YYMMOD) [ 4, FLE NUMBER

3. HMmE {
!

1. OCATION . .
dnmo \fmc\-nru TR 20040k 1k

wam, WDDLE NAME 6 SSN- . | Il

L. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

MaNF-L C2 MR I — -

ViANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNGER DATH

7. GRADESTATUS
CWw2

y p—
| was assigoed Lo Abu Ghraib on 12 Sepiember 2004 as the MDC Operations section Wwarrant for the 205G MI BDE. My guues,
along with the other 5iX wdivicuals of my platoen who arnved from Camp Cropper, were 10 help establish operations i the Jount
interrogaton Debriefin When 1 amive cments of the 519 M1 B The Company
Comrmander was eioer d the firsl sergeant was as the Jomnt
Intervopation Debricfng | Ejernent OIC. The Tind MP Co was oo ! the command and
control of the 800th MP BDE. My undersianding was tnat the Forward Qperating Base at Abu Ghraib was the responsibility of the
300t MP BDE  The first days we arrived were hecuc  We had to setup ou1 billelung area, life suppon and start developisg a
work schedulc for my persoanel. ‘About a day after 1 arnved, 10 mere MI personnel arrived. These pewly arnved persognel were
forming \he Tiger Teams {! x lnterrogator. 1 % Analyst} to augment e 5191 Tiger Teams. After two days on b gro Y
JoiETTOZAUON Operalions My six OPS personnel ¢hd poi iterrogale and swyed 10 work in the oprratons section. W
i » e

¢w why we were there My icam and I first began scrutimzing the existing requircments and derainees of 1o
P RUNGEd 1o refine our role and responsibilites well 1010 February whben | finaily depaned. Familiarization (watk-tseough) trawning
negan the day afier we arrived The newly armived Tiger Team personnel Were familiarized with iniefTOgalion Operations. They
were 1ojd and shawn where delainees Were being heid and who was scg;reg;ted and why. Before the Tiger Teams began
inlerropation operauons. they did not get a forma) laterrogation Ruies of Engagement, bul my lcam had Just amived from Camp
Cropper and hey werc aware of the IROE. As for my OPS team. | am confident bey knew what the Tules were as ey belped
smplement these ruies at Cropper. Once we recewed the acrual JROE, it was 0Ot different than what we had jearned at the school
ur what the nerrogation Field Manua) stated, however many school-houst taught technigues bad to be approved by higher. 1
behieve we would histuss he Geneva Convention Guing norinal corversation and although we initially did not get additional

Geneva Convention Urainung at JIDC, my team was awiarc of 10 the MOS schooling they had received.

¢ ume the 20 adtinogal M1 per s the senior M] officer in cpera i
arnival (around 23 Septembery, co-seated the Operanons duumu
rrived around the 16.b of September el \nning, 1 thought he was gove i
charge of Admimsiralive SUpport tu JIDC and operauans. He would go o the Hard Site with -
mysell or a member of the OPS swlf |did goto him for assi of limes oo delainee
Maticrs 734 joned us 10 days laer. Al first visited the sile
regulariy, but he did nol live there. O arnved on camp.] dida’y see W he appe

the caisung 519th bautle-plan.  LOmmumcaiso wilk the MPs did pot appear good at the beginning. Onc

became the FOB Commander, tungs did begin o change. The Eotry Canuul Point to the Hard Site trafhic w ner
racked. [be movement of detaintes became smoother  Comumumeauon wilh MPs appeared improved and they appeared more
1esponsive Lo sitc aceds. ) was never aware of. of witmessed any delaoec physical abuse or inapprupriate behadviut of mterTogation
wechniques or any photos or videos depicing such. A coupic of umes | was asked to obscrve an inierrogatiop which possibly fell
on the porder hne. 1 observed it and no wappropnate techriques materialized. 1 heard of an unauthorized wizrrogauon by Uuec
miIrogators io SEP 03. The interrogators ok a female detamee. 1 mght. and became tresh with her. 1 didn’t fully hear what
th gALaTs Were pulied off interrogations | do pot know ishment they received. Another ume, ] beard
[} aving a delaince stripped of kis clotung. Her analy also with ker. They wers pulied off

it y believe she was counscled by ber Team Leader, d given additional training oo IROE.
They were not my subordmates. Io mid November. & group from GTMU fame Lo 1 us on the GTMO mode! and worked
amongst our ranks They outlined the responsibitings of cach member and seclion and an Otgamzation Chart was developed
accordingly. Ghost deuances were those detainces who amved ai Aby Ghraib, but did not poss documentaon necessary for
full in-processing  They were usually sourced from TF-121 or Other Governmental Agencics.:

10 EXHIET t T INTIALS O STATEMENT | ‘ _ T
' ' PAGE 1 OF PAGES
o

ADDITIONAL PACES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADINS 5T~ TLAMENT TAKEN AT ____ DATED __

THE BOTTOM OF FACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE 574 TEMENT, AND PAGF NUMAFR
MUST 8E BE INDICATED.
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STATEf;lENT oF -——————— TAKEN AT f/‘?‘ HooP ) f Z pATED / ¢ v o1

g. STATEMENT (Continusd) A
%ﬂ-ey were not issued an in-processing ISN upul fully mn-processed, and until then were tracked and accounted for by Capture Tag
number and personal data. When 1 first arvived, there was no memorandum 10 what those procedurcs were.
Sometimes, dewinees were dropped off without any JIDC member knowing. ater met with OGA and TF-121
representatives and a memorandum was drafied and agreed upon by all parjef. 1ius may have occurred sometime before
Christmas. Prior to that, the MPs rmainined 2 personal file on hese ghost detainees until teis necessary paperwork followed

few days later. We wert frequently hit with mortars, but we were so sbort of personne! 10 get TOViD . 1 thought
that there were Q-36s i country and in the area, but counler-actons in our arca were oot abserved. brpug,;l ;nmthtc
unit 82nd tha

165th M1 BN wha has LRSD 1o assist with the guarding of towers an base securify issucs. There w3t alsc 2 _
arrived sometime after we did. t really do pot know Wby WEWELC BEED fully reinforced. 1 know that soldiers ofien voiced ther .
concemmn of our location and the mortar atacks. I know who} fare. They were members of Tiger Teams.

were cross-ieveled 10 the 325th from olber ks o d. Theydd ork for me. ﬂ
then reviews photos and identifictQ P possibly. and possib}

and a contract ling m he . Relainees arc teing a '31). Is there anytung you
like w0 add? A. N

PR ] i End of ¢
SI.BICl‘llt:l’Ib'”UHHUHHHHHHHfJ'””fff”ffHHHNIH.I'I'/HH/UNHH”HH.’””U”n'””””””

AWFIDAVIT

L = . HAVE READ OR WAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS OM PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE ",E‘f_-fFULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
By ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORAECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALLD THE BOTTOM OF TACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPG, OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THAEAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWTUL INFLUCNGE S 2 il 3y N . T

X IReai i O

WITNESSES® Subscnped and sworn 1o belore me, 3 person suthonzed by law to
2dmimsicr ooths, this f‘ day of Ay , &)04"
o & - a7 4 tRA &

al

mﬂ’ F 'l Il ek
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

ignature of ersan Avmnistenng Oain)

1
]
— nype! !emc of Person Adn!mrslrnng Oam}l

UCMJ, ARTICLE 136

At A

L

il
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Authority To Admimster Ouaths)
INITIALS DF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT . ﬂ
‘ PAGE oF PAGES
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FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

CITF7-TF-FAY 9 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJEC ~ B CO/302™ MI BN

1. 10} On 31 May 2004, the undersigned telephonically contacted
“‘a} {he 302° M1 BN, Wiesbaden, GM, to clarify details of his swom
statement taken in May 2004 corcerning his time at Abu Ghraib.

specific incidents of abuse. He stated (ha urs
s and that these rumours
identified
as his tnends with whom he

iterated his siatements to friends that “MPs were doing
ving sex,” and “videos of the detainces were being made”
take him seriously or construe that he

denicd ever seeing or hearing about
were rampant at Abu Ghraib concerning MP abuse of detaince

were often discussed betw

their thing,”
were just rumour; he didn’t think anvone would

had personal knowledge.

~ (U) POC is the undersigned.

USA

Licutenant Colone

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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SWORN STATEMENT
Eor use ol this form, see AR 190.45; the propanent agency i1 0ODRCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Secnon 307; Title 5 UST Secuen 2951 E.O. 8397 dated November 22, 1943 [SSN).

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commandess and law enforcement officials with means by which information may be accurately
ROUTINE USES: Your sacial secunty number is usad a5 an addional/alternate means of identificavion to {aciitate fing and retneval.
DISCLOSURE: Disclosure of your social security number is voluntary. ‘

}. LOCATION 2. DATE YYYYMMDD) 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER

OSJA, DARMSTADT, GERMANY 2004/05/

E, MIDDLE NAME 8. SS5N 7. GRADE/STATUS
6. DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS -

B/302ND Military Intelligence Banalion, Weisbaden, Germany APO AE

9. ,
'.u . WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH.

{ arived to Abu Ghraib toward the mid to late Novernber 2003 My role was ta be an intelligence analyst and be 4 member of a
Tiger Team. When I first arrived we were 101d how 1o do cur pb. We werc told 1o sil in oh the booth and take notes. 1 donot
remember getung specific training. There was bearsay hal we were not to touch 1be detainee, We were told there were mirrors i
the booth. Al the beginning | was not domg imerrogatons becauss CID was condueting an investigation on progiitution, photos
and videos. | do not knew if | ever did sign the Interrogation Rulgs of Enpagement, ] might ] was just thrown into it.
There were three inlerrogators | warked with. One of them was) also worked with us a1 times. |
s11 in with otbers as well but | Jo not remember their names. 1 pever went [o Tier 1B along, put it oul that no one
would go to the hard sie alone. [ worked the day shift 5o [ didn't go to the hard site at night €xcept for the iime of the handgun
incident. 1 never wittessed or had knowledge of any dewinee abuse, any phatos or videos of detainees or the use of dogs duriny
interrogations. We were told not fo take pitiures or weapens in Lhe booth. The MPs used the dogs. | wimessed the dogs once
dfter the bandgun incident. | was onc of the individuals called 1o assist. ] didn't do inp but showed my presence. There were]
s lot of M1 and MP personoe! there, | do not remember the M1 persunnel except fo The Traqi police wercall
lines up stripped scarched, given their clothes back and questwned. The dogs were barking and being walked amund.ﬁvcr Saw
. The

or was aware for the dog biling someecne. The hard sitc seemed unarganized because there were S0 many folks there,

. wis in charge of the main personoel; we-ust bad a presence, 1 do not rem: r who was talking 1o whom e Was
B female in the Hard Site diring all this. She was mterpreter she was with and’ . The day following the incideng

I was sene 10 Camp Yictory for thret weeks. When | rerurned, | was made a guard. Af first we would pick bp the detainees bot

that stopped and 1 never relwrned Lo the Hard Site. We just kept puard outside the booths at Camp STEEL and Camp woQD.

There were rumers about persoanel saying there were viders about detainees baving sex. My friends and 1 would joke around

making comments about detainees. When we would pass by the hard site and heatd noise we would say, oh there are the MPs

daing their thing | never thought anyone would take it seniousty. :

Q. Is there anything eise you would like fo 2dd 10 this statement?

A. No. i .

10, EXHIBIT 11. INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

PAGE 1 OF PAGES

TAKEN AT DATED

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT

THE BOTTOM OF EACH AGDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED : :
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9. STATEMENT (Continued)

Taxen AT _DARMSTADT. GE  parep

CAFFIDAVIT

_ HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT

WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENOS ON PAGE_ 2.

WITNESSES.

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF HENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHDUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOLIT COERCION. UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFUL INDUCEMENT.

| FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

{Siprmture of Person Makag Statement/

Subscrbed and swoin to betore me, a peraon autholited by isw 10

agminisier oaths, thiy day of )

at

ORGANIZATION OR ADORESS

{Signeture of Person Admirustenng Gethl

(Typed Name of Person Administerning Oath)
UCMJ, ARTICLE 136

ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS

{Authonity To Admintster Qaths)

INITIALS OF PEASON MAKING STATEMENT

PaGE 2 OF 21 PAGES

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823. DEC 1998

USAPA V1.00

AGOOQ0286

DOD 000374






. SWORN STATEMENT
For uss of this form, see AR 180-45; the proponent agency i ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Titis 10 USC Secnon 301 Tivie 5 USC Saction 2851; E.O. 9397 datad Novembar 22,1843 [55Mn).

PRINCIPAL PURAROSE: To provide COMManoes and law anforcement cfficials with means by which inforrnAtion May be accurately

ROUTINE USES: Your social SECufity number 15 used as an addinonal/shernaie means of igentification 1o tacilitate fikng and reineval.
Disciosure of you? social sacunty number is valunisry.

2. DATE (YYYYMMOD) 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER

1. LOCATION
Jbewn & oY _ob - 15 | 1845

5. 7. GRADEISTATUS
Contracte—
8. DRGANIZATION OR ‘

CACT, So4 ML BOE, T/Qc 4203 m1 BN, AFO AC 07342

5
) L—J__ WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

jous statement 10 MG Fay abomt two weeks ago. What [ know, is from
've been here since December 8, 2003, 1've heard many, many
Detainees also talk abont bad treatment from Iragis and Coalition

My name is 1 I made a prev
translaring fo and during their scresnings
detainees talking about the palace and

forces al the airport. Last week a detainee complained of being siepped on his chest at the airport. [don't know where Tt
i5. Detainees were brought fr ¢ airport in shape by I think 41D, bu ly dgp't kpow the name of the unit. 1d
me that a detainee mentioned and asked “do you know and they are here?" He said

ent 3 message through him, telling te Coalition forces, “I'm going tq.clegn up the arca and her farily™. §don't know of

any Coalitions forces' units involved. The two sisters came here January 4th. mentioncd that a dewince she was
screening, mentioned Adamya Palace about two menths ago. 1'm not familiar with any detainees associated with CISOTF-AP and

5t SF. _(/L,a_ &ﬁeﬂLo,wl—- talio M e wm/qw phou T

Hlo teeadeanl o The cirperT s ol reldd A

—_— /[/9777% /@/.L()ua_\‘

‘ 10, EXHIBIT

GE 1 OF & PAGES

‘ADD!TIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT

THE BOTTOM OF FACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAﬁ THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING TH,
| Aol - ; THE STATEMENT. AND PAGE NUMBER

DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72. 5 DBSOLETE - UBAPA V1,00

AG0000287

DOD 000375



STATEMENT (Continued)

AFFIDAVIT

41,_.),.——. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE | AND ENDS ON PAGE 1 FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. § HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BCTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE TH!S STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUE

(Signature of Person Making Steterment}

WITNESSES: Subscribed snd sworn to before me. 8 person sulhotized by law to

"\ adminigier oaths, this 5 cay of _(_z,._‘ Y <}
\ W Abn Fhreib e
-

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS gnature of Parson Admimstering Osth}

{Typed Name of Person Agministering Dath!

pema  Arhcle [3h
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS T {Authonily To Admuniter Ostha)

INITIALS OF PEASON MAKING STATEMENT . ﬂ
) PAGE OF A PAGES

USAMPC V.00

AGO00O0D2838

DOD 000376






o SWORN STATEMENT
For use of thiz lorm, see AR 190-45; the proponent agency = ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Section 301; Titke 5 USE Secnon 2351; E.O. 9357 dated November 22, 1943 [S5N)

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commandera and low enlorcement officials with means by which infarmation may be accuralcly
ROUTINE USES: Your social security number is used a5 an additional/aliernate means of identification to taciitate hiing end retrseval.
DISCLOSURE: Disciosura of your social sacurity number is voluntary.

1. LGCATION 2. DATE (¥YYYMMUD) 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER

Abu Ghraib, Detention Facility Baghdad Iraq
7. GRADE/STATUS

ME, MIDDLE NAME B. SSN

R ADDRESS
1y Intelligence Brigade. Baghdad frag

8. [e]
CACI, 504ih Milita

1 arcived 1o Abu Ghraib on 5 December 2003. 1 have never witnessed and physical abuse in Abu Ghraib. | have seen and heard a
jot of yelling and screaming during in-processing. The detainees are yelled at to move faster. These were the MPs not the
interrogaturs. 1 have never ubserved dogs being used 1o thresle a detainee. | never heard any M tell any MP to “soficp-up” a

detaigee. ever witgesses or heard of any detainee being h of madep wear any women underwear. What § know s
wha as told me. There were two sisier d 1 do not re: the sister. Oncof the
ladicEtold me that they had been taken to Al Azimiyah Palace, i an Iraqi Police caprured
her. He would beat them up and threaten them with their children. exually abused the other younger brother who is
i could not sit and was bleeding from the rectum, The boy was crying because he was sexually abuse with a stick up
ook er outside and beat him untl he passed out. They brought lum naked and threw him
ard he wasfead. end 3 message with Lhose caprured that he was going 1o clean Irag.
was an lraqi officéT who was pTomoted for domg a good job. There was one detainee who said got
told him that if be wanted to E: his wa'fc and children. he bad to pay some money to him. His wife delivered the money

I . WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

but be never saw her. Ope inerprete was present when he was naked and given a cold shower, He was placedon sleep
patterns and was forced 10 be naked. Fe did 081 remember receiving any training. The training we received was nothiog o the
classtoom environment. I felt confident on information we received on dealing with detainees. We didn't get any information on

what was acceptable and not acceptable unti) laler on whep 1w there for 2 while. In January we finally got a policy. [ basically
“(CAC]} is my immediate supervisor and in the miliary side it i3

| bave twa individuals | report 0. On the administrative,
| g ls there anything else you would like to add to this staiement?

A. No. .
Il.’NI!/IIIIHHHHHINHHIHHHHNHHHIHHHIHHHUINH!HEnd of Sul:mcnUHIHIHH!IIHHHHHIHIIHHHHI!HHHH!HHIHHHUH

10 EXHIBHT 11 INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
PAGE 1 DF PAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT TAKEN AT _____ DATED _____

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS CF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED. B -

DA FORM 2823, DEC 19498 DA FQRM 2823, JUL 72,15 OBSOLETE USAPA V10O

AGQO0CO0289

DOD 000377



STATEMENT OF _ ' TAKEN AT _AbuGhmaib __ paTeD

9. STATEMENT [Continued/

AFFIDAVIT
!

. . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGING ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE__ . | FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
By ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. 1 HAVE INITIALED ALt CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE 8OTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT DR REWARD, WITHOUT
THEEAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE. OR UNLAWEUL INDUCEMENT.

{Signature of Person Making Statement)

WITNESSES. Subseribed and sworn to belore me, a person sulhorzed by law Lo

adrmimsier oatha, this day of
a1 Ahu Ghraib, Detenuon Facitity

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {S:gnature of Person Admirnstening Osth)

{Typed Name ol Person Administenng Gath)

UCMIJ, ARTICLE 136
lauthonty To Adminisier Gaths/

ORGANIZATION CR ADDRESS

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES

PAGE 3. DA FORM 2B23, DEC 1988 UBAFA V10D

AGO000250

DOD 000378






' : SWORN STATEMENT
For use &1 1his form, sen AR 130-45; the proponant SQENCY is oossorPs
PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AU THORITY Trva 10 USC Section 301; Twa & USC Secuen 2851; £.0. 5397 dated November 22, 1843 [S5N).
PRINCIPAL PURPQSE: To provids commandsrs and law #nlorcamant afficials with maana by which information may be accuritaly
ROUTINE USES: Your social secuUNty NumMber is usss AR Ah additonal/shternats maans of igentificarion to taciltate filing and retiaval,
DISCLOSURE: Mpzinsute U yOUl SOTIE SECUIY HUMDET 3 yuRNLBTY .
1 LOCATION . 2. DATE (YPYYMMDD) |3 TIME 4 FiLE NUMBER
Rbu Ghraib, Lieo Zeed ok 15 13¢5
L MID ] : 7 'I/fHADEISTATus
Frraer Foai 2. 00

- Te Alzee. AT Fd AP A BFT Y

WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

' isﬁzl‘;m a1 t here a1 Abu Ghraib since Decernber 200 '
in reference 10 3 e an I screened both brothers
] The sistere armived-omr January 4ih-sad-tha-brosher-on Jarmeary 20d.

. o death and they thought we were going to beat them  Ons said he was raped with a botile by
nientioned another brother that was supposcdly beal to deall. :

io my oplmonpzme 0 emotiogally and physically abused.iuid. i don‘t remember in exact words, “they have waken
everything fromyme ”

I don't remember thewr capruring unit; all I know was that they came from the palace. | asked them if Americans were present and
(hal's when the American flag talloo oh the arm came up, and somecne said they 2 saw black man there.

The first thing | do when [ do a screening is ask them if thers are any medical conditions that | need w know about. That's wheo
anything like, if they've bees abused, comes up and I'll stop the interview and take them to the aid station next door. The next day
if we MI hold th 1 a giliary value, they're seen by e Air fotoe GOCIOES AS well. ] want to say that we 100k the brothers to
the aid station, bul said we didn't bécause we were gefiing hit by morars. 1 dop't kmow if they got a rectal examinavion. |
don'l remember anything-about their wrists. When | sereen delawnees and view their packets | can generally tell who their
Capluring Wt was

When SF brought detainees in they used 1o put sandbags on iheir heads and they 'd drop them off and leave. They siopped all the
sandbags because when they ook the sandbags off therr heac, you could see that they were facially abused. Not all of them, jus
some of them, but that just sicks out, SF. I gon’t know wiich SF unit, 1saw dewinees with bruises, black eyes. biood io thr
eyes, beaten, physical abuse 1f we get them like that, we'll sicp and take them 1o the aid station o1 MPs, that way we're cleared
Jof . We don't want 1t saud thal it happered here

It's to the point now when we M1 Hold someone they all say they've been torured, it's ridicwlous,  Since the Abu Ghraib thing
broke ou delainees are saywg it, more than looking it. They know they’li get mooey from Americans, and they know Abu
Ghraib. Over the course of my time here 1 bave seen mayvbe en detainees come in heTe physically abused, downright beaten and
red, and | ve casily screened bundreds of detainees.  The only rend associated with that abuse would be with SF detainess.

i name Cormes lot amonp delawees and abuse. One of the first questions 1'd ask was "why were you
detained” and if they would menticn 1t was usually associaed with = ion. and "he beatme™ Those wore

ihe AW rends sich: LBCTe. ; S
,/"'“ C"—-_)/"
[}

——

/ -I
10, EXHIBIT |

o

PAGE 1 DF L PAGES

——_ DaTED ____

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “ST.

I BOTTCAY OF FACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE Ni
MUST BE BE INDICATED ' )  AND PASE NUMBER

DA SORM 2823, DEC 1498 O& FOAM 2823, JUL 72. 1S OBSOLETE : UBAPA V1.0

AGO000291

DOD 000379



STATEMENT [Continueo!

AFFIDAVIT

. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT

WHICH INS ON PAGE 1

CONTAINING THE STATEMENT.

’V/VlTNESSES

il

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE.

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, tri{snvelii

AT

ENDS ON PAGE _ZL . | FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATFHA
i HAVE INITIALED ALL CDRHECTIDNS AND HAVE r'iLALED mr [C1R ,t.-r.t 11 EACH {{PAGE

} HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT ﬂ[:_ Y WITAGY
TULINCT, C)R’

Signarere ot Pareatilles i o AW

Subscribec and swon to belore me, a‘éi:':;-.r.n suthorized by law to

sdminister oaths, this /.5”".1" of 92-——- . }JH
al A 1y 6 ra, z-‘Q

—

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

Mopeatena- nF Coevin: A\t RTINS

vped Neme of Person Administerng Oath)

VemT Aefrek /3G

ORGANIZATION GR ADDRESS

" tAuthorty To Administer Qaths)

INITtALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT I . -
: : : ' PAGE & OF A- PAGES

UEAPPC ¥2.00

AGO000292

DOD 000380






SWORN STATEMENT
For use of this form, see AR 190-45; the proponent agency & ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Tme 10 USC Sechon 301: Trie 5 UST Section 2951; E.D. 9307 dated November 22, 1843 (SSN)
PRINCIPAL To provide comdhanders and law enforcement offials with means by which information may b accurziery wenufied
ROUTINE USES: Your social SECUMly number ts used as an additionatialtenate means of icentification to lacilitate filing ana reTweval
DISCLOSURE: Disciosure of your social secufty number 1S voluntary.
1. LOCATION 2. DATE (YYYYMMDD) 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
-Abu Ghraib Detention Facility ‘ :

FIRE] NAME, MIDDLE NAME 6. S5N 7. GRADEJST(?IT\L,JS

8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
CACI, 504th Military Intelligence Brigade, Abu Ghraib

9.
(‘ . WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH,

| arrived at Abu Ghraib in mid December. 1 was assigned as a screener. When I first amrived, we were given the briefed on b .
Interrogadon Ruies of Engagement (TROE). 1did have a geoeral understanding of the Geneva Convenuon, Military Policy and the
CACI policy. ] pever witnessed or was awareof any detainct abuse at Abn Ghraib. Idid sce alot of the detainees come to Abu :
Ghraib abused. There was a family who was brought 1n because they were supposely Fedeyeen. 1 would always ask about their

bealth problems, If tehy told us they were beaten, we would 1ake them to the medical facility o get checked. There was one incident

of rapc wi brother. I wrote the report and sent it up higher. This.ocrurred in January at ASAMIYA
PALACE. d Iraqi Police, was causing tuis. [ is zecently killed him and hung him. |
beard this through interpreters but not official channels yet. I do oot know wh o . One of the indivudal
who had been abuyse

id be remembers onc of the Amencans had a flag on himarm. ['worked fo for operanons,
military side, an uring screenings, : ’ i
Q. Do you have anything ¢lsc to add o this stlement?

A. No
S L L T L T 3 Statement/ NI LR TR T

10. EXHIBIT 11 INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
- PAGE10OF __2__ PAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HERDING "STATEMENT TAKENAT ___ DATED ____

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED ' ‘

DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 DA FORM 2BZ3, JUL 72, 1S DBSOLETE USAPA V1 00

AG0000293

DOD 000381



STATEMENT OF “ TaKkEN AT _Abu Ghnaib . DATED

g STATEMENT (Continued)

AFFIDAVIT

I HAVE READ DR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGING ON PAGE 1. AND ENDS ONPAGE_ 2 . IFULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INIT'ALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT. AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWF UL INFLUENCE | OR UNLAWFUL tNDUCEMENT.

{Signature of Pergon Meking Statement)

Supscribag and SWOMR TU before me, 3 person authonzed by faw 10

WITNESSES:
agminister caths, this day of
at Abu Ghraib Detention Facility
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS (Signaiure of Person Admimnstenng Gath)
{Typed Namea of Parson Aoministanng Oarn)
: UCMIJ. ARHCLE 136
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Authoniy To Aammuster Qaths)

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES

PAGE 3. DA FORM 2823. DEC 1898 . USAPA V1.00

AGO000294

DOD 000382






21 June 2004
MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD: -~
SUBJECT: Procedure 15 interview of
On 05.MAY 2004 orge R. Fay and QN rterview e
was read his rights (Detainee abuse, failure to

report that abuse, faise testimony) which he invoked. {DA Form 3881 provided).
Source requested legal counsel and MG Fay ended the interview.

—
M

“MAJ. M
Investigating Officer

AGQ000285

DOD 000383
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STATEMENT Arac AT ABU GHEALD PRISON COMPLEX, [RAQ DATED |4 Jun 2004 CONTINUED

A lsolation. It's where the Militery Intelligence prisoniers are kept.

: . Q: Who were the Military Intelligence personned that conducted the interviews of the alleged rapists?

i acl recogaize the faces, but ] don’t know theic names. I kaow that ooe of the M people has lef: Irag, but the otnes one
is stifl here. {don't know his name though.

Q: Who else wos preseat when you saw the deraince's handcuffed together?

4A- There was a bunch of other MI people there, dut [ don't know their names. There was also other IVP's there, but ]
don't know their names either.
(: Did anyone other tha
A No, the only peopie that hit the detainees wad

Q: Do yoy recall anyoue thyowing anything at the detainees while they were bandcuffed together? '
Al saw row a football at the prisoners. He was pretty close and it hit one of the detainee’s in the

stomach.

Q:Dad you ever see anyons jugip oo of Kick the detziness that night?
A: No. Like 1said, [ only saw it the detainees with their hands, not thesr f=et.

Q. Why were you there that aight?

A: | was ordered to werk at the 130 area to rranslate between the guards and the detainees.

Q: Why do you think piaced the alleged rapists 1n a sexual position after
undressing them?

| A:1think they weee trying 10 humiliate them
Q: Did anyons at Milstary Inteligence omcmto do these things to the detainces?

A:ldoa't know, b ver hea one tell them to do anything like they did,

Q: How were Mammg when they placed the detainees together in 2 sexue)
mannes? _ . .

A They were laughing agd having a good tune.

Q: When you hcardhrag about hitung 2 prisonsr into the cefl door, how vas he acting?
A He seemed nappy to have caused a lot of paw for the detaince.

Q- Do you have anything to add to this statement?

A No//END OF STATEMENT#/ fls-l

etainee’s that night?

AFFIDAVIT
AVE READ DR HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT, WHICH BEGINS (OON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE 2. FFULLY
UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMERT MADRE BY MZ  THE STATEMENT (S TRUE. | HAVE iNITIALED ALL
CORRECTIONS AND MAVE INTTEALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. 1 HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT
FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OR BENEFIT QR REWARD, WITHOUT TRREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL
TAINFULERCE , DA UNLAWFUL INDUC EMENT. ’

{Signaiure of Farson Mahing Statement)

WI|TNESSES
Subscrnped and sworn tc before me, a peraon avthorized by Law {0
agmimister oalhs, \his 140 day of January, 2004 al Abu Ghrap, Iraq, APO
AZ 03215

ORGAMIZATION OR ADDRESS {Sigrature of Parson Adrumslenng Cath)
,WT" Milnary Pohice Batlakon (C1D) : _j
Baghdud, lray, APO AE 09135 -

{Typad Name of Person Adminisieang Oath)

. Articie 136 UCMS or 5 USC 807
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Authoniy lo Adminisier Qaths)

L INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES

Hieia) 1s& vy ExXHIBIT

AGO00G0297

DOD 000385






7 , SYWORN STATEMENT
For wse of this {orm, see AR 190-45; The propanent ageacy of the Déguz Chitl of Staif for Personne!.

ATION DATE TiviE FILE NUWBER
Ai?g:.f:ib. Baghdnd Lrag 15 Jan 04 wd IS:io p:—u""‘
¥ MAME, ¥IDDLE NANME CURITY NUNBIR GRADESTATUS
'\
ORCANIZATION OR ADDRESS
Titen Carporaiion, Abu Ghruib Correctioan! Facility, Abu Ghriib, lrag 99335
L want to make the folipwing statement under osth:

Q. Are you making this statement on your own free will?
. Yes.
. Have you been advised that you dp not have to answer or questions or say anything?
Yes.
_ Are you able to leave at this time if you decide to terminate this interview?
Yes. ' ) _
Has anyone threaienea you in anyway? oo
No. .
Are you currently taking any medications that would impede your ability to answer these questions?
No. . ‘
. On 14 Jan 04, when you gave CID a sworn staternent, was that a truthful statement? -
_ 1did not say the part of how I held the detainces foot that was on the floor se he would not run away.
Why did you hold the foot down of the dstamee?
So he would not run away and he would answer the.questios. [ held it with my band. Not in any powerful
ay.
Did anyope ask you to hold the foot of the detainee?
No.
Did anyone force you to bold the foot of the detainee?
No. ] thought | was helping the MP's to get to the truth.
How many interrogations have you been a pant of since amiving at Abu Ghraib?
Maybe between 80 and 100 interviews
What agencies do you assist in the mterviews?
M and MP's, and some OGA.
. Heve rmany wmss have you seen M1, MP, or OGA intercogate three detainees at the same tme, handcuffed
and aude, on the floer?
A. One ume. .
Q. Are you aware bf the guidelines that are allowed by MI, MP and OGA when they are interviewing a
{detaines? '
{A. We were bnefed on the guidelines. ["Jncfcd us back m November sometime.
).” Was thus bniefing pnior to the incident mestioned above?
A after this incident.
Q. Do you ttunk that what the MPs and the Mi were downg to the three detainees was a correct form of
interrogauon? '
A No. | think they ook maners into their own hands.
Q. Why was it not the comrect form of interrogations?
A. Well first of all they wanted to interview the detainees they should have let Ml talk to them. 1 do not think
]

ProOPOPOPOEPOPOPOPOPOPOP

For Oifinial Llsa Only EXHIRIT &

(gd] freg

AGQO00298

DOD 000386



MPs are qualified here to do these intérviews.
Q.,S0 you realize this was an unauthorized interrogation?

RLQ"FL.’::SQ el o et Ena -‘.-bJ‘ Lt n_.lﬁwa..-v’ — Lt

Q. Did any of the men the detainees in this incident speak English?

No

Were you the only translator at thds incident?

Yes. I even apologized to the detainees after this was down. [ 1old them I thought what had bappenzd was
I very degrading. _ :

Q. What specifically did you tell the detainees to do?

A. Don't try to run away, stop right there, are you gay, do you like what is happening to you, are you all gays,
you must like that position. These were some of the questions or things that I told them. '
Q. Did you realize at the umse that you were saying thesc things to the detainees that it was wrong to tell thern
these things the soldiers wanted you to say?

. I'do realize it was wrong at that time to say these thungs.

. Why was it was wrong to say these thing to the detainees?

. Because il was degrading to them. ’

Wy did you transiate these things anyway”?

>o>

>

_ 1 thought that was what [ was requiredto do as a translator.
. Did you ever receive any briefing how detainees would be treated?

9

A

Q

A

Q

A. No.

Q. Were you ever tcld who you could report deteinee abuse to? -\ :
A No. The only thing that is logical is 1o report it to your bass or tee-the unit.
Q

A

Q

d=

IBA

Q.

A

Do you feel what you said lo these detainees was wrong?

. Yes.
. Duid you ever translate for_on any otber occasion when they abused the

tanees”

_ Just whea they would shake them. Nothung that was significant.
Have you ever it or assauited any deiainee?
T just held his foot, and I shook them by grabbing thew clothes.

- AFFIDAYT

{@__ HAVE READ OR HAYE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE L AND
DS O PAGL 3 7-1FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT NIADE 8Y #E. THE STATEMINT ISTRUL. |
HAVE (NTTIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. 1 HAVE

© MADE THIS STATENENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF DENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT THREAT OR PUNISHNMENT, AND WITHOUT
COERCION, UNLAY FUL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFUL INDUCEMENT.

i {Signature sl Person Making Statement)

WITHESSES: . SUBSCRIBED AMD SWORN BEFORE (L, A BIRSON BY LAW
TO ADNMINISTER OATHS, THIS 13th DAY OF _Jan 04
Al _A i A *

ORCANIZATION DR ADDRESS

{ Signature of Peraon Admmisteriag Bath)

DRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
__Warren D. Worth
{Name of Peraan Adnnuisiering Dath)

‘! __Arncie 136, VCHL
! { Authority te ABmiaister Onth)
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Q. Was there ever time when you were in a ¢ _.1 with a detainee alone?

A. I do not recall ever being alone in a cell with any detainee. I alway:
have a guard present when I am in the cell. _

Q. Have you ever been in a cell alone and the detainee «as nude?

A. No not alone. Only when they werne being questioned by MI or somecne anc

I was translating.

Q. Did you ever engage in sexual intercourse with a male detainee?

A. No.

Q. Were you ever present when photographs of detainees were taken?

A. When they took the picture of the detainee that busted his chin, I was
present for that. '

R. Who took this picture?

AL

Q. Why did -take the picture?

a. 1 do not know. Maybe to prove he was injured.

0. How did this detainee get injured?

A. pushed the detainee against the wall.

Q. Did you witness this act?

A. No. I was upstairs at the time.

Q. Who else was there?

A. 1 think B ~as 10 the office up stairs; maybe ﬁ_or he
came after. .

Q. Why did -push this detainee into the wall?

n. 1 do not. knou.hdid not say why he -did it.

Q. Who stitched thg detainee’s chin up? e

A. The medics and helped sew up the wound.

Q. Dic you ever witness assault any other detainees?

A. To the extent of injury no, but they would shake the detainee around.
Especially when they detainee was a high-ranking officer or political
value,

Q. Did you ever take any pictures of the detainees?

A. No.

Q. Do you have a personal computer here?

A No. : .

Q. Have you ever seen any cther MP's conduct interviews of the detainees?

&. I have seen _shake some of the detainees’.

Q. Do you have anything to add to this statement?

A. No.///End of Statement///+—

INITLALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT |
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. SWORN STATEMENT
For use of this form, see’AR 150-45; the proponent agency is DDCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Secton 301; Title 5 USC Secton 29%1; E.G. 9397 dated Novermnber 22, 1943 [SSn/

PRINCIPAL PUAPOSE: To provide commanders and law enforcement afficials with means by which information may be accurately
ROUTINE USES: Your social security number is used as an additional/siternate means of wentlication 1o Taciitate filing ahd rewneva:.
DISCLOSURE: Disclosurs of your social secunty number 15 voluntary.

1. LOCATION : 2. DATE {YYYYMMDD, 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER

CAMP VICTORY, BAGHDAD, IRAQ 2004/05/05 &, eA 1410

w& MIDDLE NAME 6. SSN u 7. GRADE/STATUS
- v

8. ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS
TTTAN

S, .
_ , WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

I was assi.gue} 1w Abu Ghraib on 23 July as a linguist. 1 was with the firsi group of Linguists who arrived on site., The wee some

MPs on site alpe 1 persogpel armive a couple of days before we did. When we first arrived, Abu Ghraib was not
set up yeL. ave us a tour of the facilities and were introducedd to the 205th members. Our focns
was (o clean up the plice and get it ready [0 operate in. 'We had some mock interrogations. We were lold how ipterrogations

would occur. At that time, no ome spoke to us in detad) about apy miles og how 1o Teat detainess, We were told on bow and what
10 translate hasically 10 maintain the same state of mind as the imerrogator.  We didn't have a class on probibidons apainst
detamnees. Justin General we were told not to physically touch, push of hit a detaines unless a detainec initiated the act. Within
two days of my arrival, | was rarsladng for interrogators. | warked with several interrogators initially.

1 knew no weapons or cameras were allowed § ral rule no pictures were allowed. [ wndersinod that, 1]
had a quesdon of taking phoeos, 1 would ask humiliating a detainec, the jmes when
inerrogalors used dirty language. ) brought this up this was discussed with%
[owerrogaton Operatiuns Chief. She said somenmes the inierrogatnrs were atlowed o use dirty lappuage. Approxsmalely two
monts after my arrival, Were were a group of 6-8 bruthers dehivered 10 the detention facility, One of the detainees was
The werrogators believed be was the teader of the group and 1he leader of a smuggling operation. While | was conducting
interrogalors., [ sa alking down the haliway naked. The interrogaior was a 205t railitary soldier. | do ool recall his
name. AnolheT incident |'saw was of 4 naked detainee leaning against the wall and water being poared at him.  This was during
the winter. 1 did ot repart it because ] did nol know what | was supposed 1o de 1o such incidents. We were nou wld what our
responsibilities were. 1t wasn't usli] another incident vccurved that we were Wold orr responsibilitics In reporting such scts. We
were told thal if any abused occwrred in the bonth the enlire twam along with the linguists shared the responsibility. The incident 1

um referting W was when Wiree incrrogators wi iznLinto 2 female Jetainee cell and harassed her (that is what the
detainee apd otber detatnee wimesses reported). statcd that if fernales were 10 be intermogaied by male a femaie
intcrrogator or 2 female MP had to be present. xplaincd the Ioverrogation Rules of Engagement (IROE) and made

to return thern. postzd the IROESs on the ICE wall. Tbere were some interrogation techniques that required approval
from bigher. . When interrogations were complete, the MPs would ask the MI if the detainee had covperated or was good. M1
would answer and teil them to put them in sleep deprivaton or place loud muosic, in summer they would Tequest to cover the
window. |n winter, they would request the blunket be taken away. Oone wne | beard an MP tell M1 to put it in writing, The MPs
were there 1o keep order. [ was never aware of Uic use of dogs except when the dags were used for accountability in the general
pupulzton and at that tmc the dogs were distant from the detainces. The delainee complaint to the interrogator that they did not
want (0 wear women's underwear, The detaince was told that that was the only thing available at that time. | never heard or was
aware of M telling the MPs 10 "soften up” or physicalty abusc a detaince. | never witmessed such things. At the heginning it was
a very hostile environment. MI wus under pressure w produce results. The soldicrs were young and somg were upsct because
they felt that some of these detainees hud kalled Americans. There was another tme when four micrTogators oak a detaines and
while interrogating him they asked tum if he wanted to ke hus shin ofl. They asked hum if he wanted to bt touched by a man.
(coe of the interrogator actually touched the detaimee’s breast).  During another interropation o female interrogator wid me she was
poing to use bumiliation techniques. She told the detainee he had a mw: if his wile appreciaied or liked his body. |

cveryont sign U‘Wall received a copy of the IROEs but we had 1o wm them v the next day. | dog’t know why we had

requesied they stop and she did. | belieye the interrogator’s name was or something like that. | was shown some
pbotos where [ identified the lingus On several photos he was standing next to other military persoane} with a naked
detiunez, other photo be was situnff on the floor with his hack 10 the wall next 1o o naked detainee who appeared to e
treated, vuld spend & great amount of time in the isolation area. Most of the time | wenl to the isolation area, he was
always there. " | saw mm a couple of tunes in the women's detainec ares. [ do not recall anything else.

Q. gn you Iavc anything clse (o add 1o this stalement”
A. No '

10. EXHEBIT 1. INITIALS OF P AKING STATEMENT
PAGE 1 OF PAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STA TEMENT TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED.
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.;STATEMEN-T OF_____ taxen AT _CAMP VICTORY DATED 2003/05/05

9. STATEMENT [Continusd}
/IIHHIII)'!I!lll’flIHIIHHIHHHHIHHI”////EIK‘ of Statement//HIHHIHIIN IR ]

N _ d

IDAVIT '
1 , HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT )
WHICH BE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE_ ] . | FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT 15 TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATCMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT CDERCION. UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, C7LNLAWSUL INDUCEMENT, :

WITNESSES: Subscrnbed and swam 1o before me, a person authanized by law (o
adrimister oatha, this _Shl  day of MAY . 2004
at CAMP VICTORY. BAGHDAD, IRAQ

) ;M )
f— )
- voed Name of PEFfsan Admurustanng Oath)

UCM), ARTICLE 136
CRGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Authorny To Adnurister Oarhs)

4 |
INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATE W
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ignaiure of Ferson Makng Statement)

OAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

!S:;-rnawre ol Person Aormwwsten
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09 June 2004
MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Procedure 15 Telephonic Interview DM

On 09 June 2004, I conducted a telephonic interview o_ The following is a
statement based on questions 1 asked. dis currently reviewing his statement and

getting it signed.

DET OKINAWA, 500™ MI GROUP

I arrived at Abu Ghraib on 20 October 03. The first.few days 1 mived,_
took us on a tour of the facilities and we received training on the Interrogating Rules o

Engagement. | believe the training was sufficient and | made sure my team understood
thern. The training was no different than what we had received at the school with the

exception of the use of dogs. The school never taught us how to use dogs and we did not

inow how we could usc the dogs. 1 do not remember anyone explaining how 1o use the
dogs. | remember in casual conversations that dogs were allowed to bark. I remember
thinking if you have a dog barking that 1s not going to be a good interrogation technigue.
1 never uscd a dog nor did any of my team members. Techniques as sleep deprivation
were a common thing. We were never trained on the use of dogs. Everyone read the

IROE and signed thai they understood them. As far as the commanders go, the training .

was sufficient. 1 did believe that the junior soldiers could have receiving more training
because interrogation operations in not a science. You never know how a detainee is
poing to respond to cenain dstainees. You cold never get cnough training. In
interrogations there are a lot of calls we had to make. It is not a science when dealing
with people. New things that are not covered in the IROE come up every day. 1 was
fortunate that I had some more experience individuals. 1 didn’t know anything was going
on until | got back from leave. 1 was made & section leader for the Force Protection Tiger
Team and took over team. 1 was team leader from OCT until DEC
(1% week).
My team consisted of
member (big football physic African American), and a linguist
after a shag time, nothing that had to do with interrogations.)

ﬂd their § ther. The first ime [ went to the Hard Site was on the
tour of the acilitg/. ICE NCOIC took us on the tour. I am not 100%
sutre that the 470" arfived the same tme we did. [ am pretty sure that they did go on the
tour. 1 was toward the rear of the group because of my leg problem. On the tour 1 saw
detainees mopping the floors. 1 also saw guys in civilian clothes Jeading the detainees
and miliary personnel were present as well. I was told the guys in civilian clothes were
the Iragi Police. 1did not see any naked detainees during the tour. As far as | know, |
never saw a request to interrogate a detainee naked. | do not think anything like that

a CACI
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happen. 1 made pretty regular spot check and never saw any naked detzinees. 1do not
know who the interrogators got approval from. When 1 went to spot check, the only thing
| saw that was humiliating was a detainee who had 2 Mohawk. The MP (NFI) was

bragging that his clippers run out on him angd | felt this was wrong and not h:l{:ing the
issuc. [ thought he wasn’t heiping the issuc was there and witnessed
it and 1 expected he wonld do something about it. 1 didn't think it was b arule but

it was truly walking a fine line. There was one time whe conducted
an ipterropation of denainee (I think detainee number 108).
ulture dealing with ferfiales is lower.

fficult Wme with thisindividual. And in their
~wan_tcd & male 0 go
interrogate.

He -vanted 1o see if he could get something from the detainee. He did not get unything
that id not already have. [ didn’t like the fact thet he was
interrogating and wasn't trained to do sp, but ] thought “He is a major and I guessed he
had gotten approval fro o go in there, Interrogation plans werc already
being written when | arrived at Abu Ghraib. Everything was a bit Chaotic. The JDIC
hadn't been fully stood up. It was a kind of hit and miss on interrogation plans. To say
that every time the interrogator went 1o o interrogate a plan was written down would be
false. Support for resources was very limited. There were way too many people for the
area we were working out off. Peoplc were bouncing off each other. The resources we
had were very limited; only one printer worked half the time. A lot of time we ran out of
Interrogation Plan forms so they were written on back of paper. We would scream at the
NCOIC and OIC that we needed printing support but there were no printers. All
interrogation plan forms should be kept on the interrogation plan. 1 might sound like a
broken record on interrogation plan, but I mentioned it during the team leader meetings.
1 stated that we needed to do interrogation_plans and they needed to be & roved b
the ICE eralions;

section leagders
‘hen as not ground).

were haviog a di

or No. | know that during the team lgader's meeting we were told that we would get 2
paper copy back but that it would take a couple of weeks to get it back. If we needed an
extended IROE, it would take time to get it approved. I never had an extended IRQE
request from any of ers. I do not thigk when [ was a team leader we had
an extended. did discuss slecp deprivation on
one of our detainees.
When an intcrrogator asked to use a technique reguiring approval from higher, | would
tell them, “Okay this is the procedurc-memo forwnd once it comes back
approved, you can do it. Bul some of the team members would not follow up with the
request because it was 1oo much trouble. We had about 440 detainees 1o interrogate and
our list was growing. [ dg not remember anyonc being naked during interrogations. |
can't imagincuwould allow something like that to happen. There might

have been some of the lower enlisted trying to push the blame up if they actually did this.
The interrogators are not kids and they have been trained at the school. For someone to

interrogation, Contro! Element (ICE; and was in charge of the JIDC.
hvas there but 1 am not sure what he dig. Some of the techniques.required to
be approved were send. s ' yic e-mails and ﬁwould. review them and
scnd it up the chatin to ould get it back and give us a Yes .
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53 had the okay to have a detainee naked is probably not true. I worked wiu”

quite a bit. 1 know she would not have approved this. When formations werz
called, ‘we would be told to read the IROE but we were not told what went wrong and
what we needed 1o do 10 prevent it. We just wondered “Why we were resigning?” As far
as detainee abuse: I do not know if it was but it didn't seem right. One time when !
walked through the hard site, I noticed one detainee naked on the mattress. 1 do not know
if he was chained. He was called the “boitle boy” because he shoved a bottie up his ass.
1 asked thé MPs why is he naked? There were NCOs all around and [ thought it wasn't
right. 11told them, “You guys are MPs and 1 do not know what you can do and cannot de.
There was no confinuity between MPs and interrogators so that if we see something, we
can question it. To me 1o have a detainec naked was wrong. 1 was working the day shifi.
[ dc not remember who the MPs were. | think there was captain there. | saw bim there a
couple of times. 1 was in the area bout 15 times from Octobeg to December. ] did not do
interrogations but I sat in on several. 1 sat in the one with the 1 puess
he was leaving and he wanted glory to take it with him. Another incident 1 heard about
after 1 returned trom leave on 2 February 04. 1 never saw or was aware of any unofficial
photos of detainees. The only time I saw someone taking photos was when we went on
tour. He was caught and his camera was confiscated. 1 knew nothing about videos. ]

don't remember ever seeing dogs, bul I do remember them coming. The night oi lhi

shooting, 1 was in a different area. We were guarding the LSA. [ just remembe
MR brazying and talking about baving to shoot the detainee. HUMILIATION: the
guys with the hair cut. The detainee through interrogator stated they do this without

remorse. Iihink 108. MPS had done that.
1 remember, He was always the one very friendly. It wasn't him. It was

anather NCO who was bragging about the clippers running off.

1 don't realty recall OGA except for one time when they wanted to speak to one of our
detainees. | rearranged the schedule so that they could speak to the detainee. One of my
guys went in with them. It might have b:en- After they finished, they simply
left and did not say thanks. We never saw them again. We hid ISG come by and speak
to one of our detainees, but our detainees had such 2 low profile neither OGA nor ISG
wanted to speak to them. We had a job to do where a lot of the tasks po beyond the
individual morals and interrogators have to make a judgment calls. -As far as women's
Underwear: [ recall someone saying something about women’s underwear. More of a
“hey" we should 1ry that Something of that nature. Nothing formal. I remember peopic
izughing over that. 1 do not know how ihe canversation started or maybe [ walked into. |
want to say it was a CACI guy named {an older puy). He was on my team. His
interrogation techniques were_very harsh. He once interrogated someone to the point of
making them pee. It was and his analyst (came out Jaughing about it. [ addressed
both of them.). 1 took FM 34-52 and sat it down with nd gave him a verbal
counseling or his job performance and to have him read the FM 34-52 and follow 1t

did not like me telling him how to do his job. He 10ld me, *]1 have been doing this for 20
years and | do not need a 20 yr old telling me how 10 do my job. [ told him not to dg
things of that nature Chaving detainees while interrogated). | told

aboulli':nd he said, " What do you want me 1o do about i1?” | basically had a shoulder
turned on me.  1spoke 1o dbom other things in panicular‘ report

writing skills, ] had one guy who worked with COMPUSA who was an investigator and
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was hired on that ¢xperience, We did have a report writing class after that but during
one of the classes,gwas sitting in the back of the room not even facing the instructor
1 remember telling this. Tt is really hard when yoy tell upper management and you get
that in response. You hold this guy's hand? [ ha and an African American CACI]
employee on the same team. | had to switch The African Ameg cause he was
known 16 takc over intetrogations so | placed him with ﬁbccausc

was a stropg 97E. The African American on my team was kind_of doing
ut him

Krowledgeability Briefs, but be was hire 10 as an analyst. 1 believ

to conduct Knowledgeability Brefs. 1 loldﬂmai the CACI puys we were
getting had no clue and did not know how to write the reports. [ was spending more time
editing reports. It would have taken me 1/3d of the time if [ would have written the
reports myself. [ did sit doan with the AFRICAN AMERICAN CACI guy we had and
went over report writing. We were told we needed more interrogations, MORE, MORE,
And MORE. ! cared more about numbers and not
gquality. | sentioned to_folks that what was more important; good information or more
detainees. 1 did know He was a very nice guy with high morals. My first

impression of him was good. H]c: was very motivated 1o WDT I was surprise to s¢e his

name on the investipative report.

oML
Invesugating Officer
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